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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Macau E&M Holding Limited (the “Company”), | hereby
present to you the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Year” or “Reporting Period”).

The global economic downturn remained unabated in 2021, which
posed a huge challenge to the Macau Special Administrative Region
(“Macau”) of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). With travel
restrictions and quarantine requirements tightened, tourist spending
dropped alongside tourist number. Those measures also affected the
gaming and entertainment sector in Macau, suppressing customer
numbers. Making things worse, in the second half of 2021, VIP junket
operators in Macau were caught in allegations of running illegal gaming
operations. All of the above harmed the Macau economy in 2021.

Taking into account the negative circumstances in the Macau economy
and her pillar gaming and entertainment industry, the Company
inevitably did not see a rebound of operating revenue for the Year. The
Group’s revenue for the Year decreased by approximately 33.3% to
MOP184.5 million. However, the Company’s management remains
cautiously optimistic about the future development of the Group and
Macau’s E&M industry.

Although the COVID-19 pandemic has had dire impacts on the Macau
economy, the Company took it as an opportunity to hone its strengths
and capabilities. The management has stepped up the consolidation of
internal resources, fine-tuned hardware and systems, to enhance the
Group’s capacity. And, as always, staff training is taken as a priority. All
in all, the Group has been doing its best to ensure it could ride out the
recession unscathed. To the Company, there is light at the end of the
tunnel for the Macau economy.

Regarding the outlook of year 2022, while expecting it to continue to be
full of uncertainties, the management will remain vigilant and diligently
follow the Group capital expending guidelines to make sure the Group
will be in the best position to pursue new projects when the recovery
comes.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”, each a
“Director”) and management of the Company, | thank all shareholders,
investors, the Group’s customers and partners for their trust in and
continuous support of the Group. My heartfelt gratitude also goes to all
staff members for their great effort and remarkable performance in 2021
despite it ridden with challenges.

CHEONG Ka Wo
Chairman, CEO and Executive Director

25 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Group is an electrical and mechanical (“E&M”) engineering
services works contractor in Macau, ranking fifth among the E&M
engineering services works contractor in Macau in 2019 according to
the market research report provided by Frost & Sullivan on the Macau
E&M engineering services market. As an integrated E&M engineering
service works contractor registered with the Land, Public Works and
Transport Bureau of Macau, the Company provides a comprehensive
mix of E&M engineering service works based on the needs of its
customers in Macau. The comprehensive mix of E&M engineering
works involves a combination of the supply and/or installation of (i) low
voltage systems works; (ii) heating, ventilation and air-conditioning
systems works; and (iii) extra low voltage systems works, and the
relevant testing and commissioning thereof as well as management and
monitoring of quality and delivery of E&M engineering services works in
Macau. The Group began its business through focusing on the public
sector E&M engineering services works projects and gradually
expanded into the private sector. The Group offers repair and
maintenance service for property and hospitality facilities in Macau,
including world class hotels and integrated entertainment resorts. The
demand from this sector would be driven by the strategy and planning
of the casinos and hotel operators in Macau, which would in turn
increase the demand for repair and maintenance related E&M works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to rage in countries around the
world. However, following the mass rollout of COVID-19 vaccination
programs and the adoption of the “learn to live with COVID” strategy in
most countries, the global economy is on the road to recovery. In 2021,
more than 70% of Macau’s citizens were fully vaccinated, this has
demonstrated that Macau is well prepared for economic recovery once
relaxations of border controls are implemented. However, the entire
E&M industry continued to suffer amid the ongoing pandemic, with
budgets for new projects being squeezed. As an E&M engineering
services works contractor, the Group expects its performance to
recover following the rebound of the tourism and gaming industries.
During the pandemic, the Group has continued to explore new
opportunities to develop its business and broaden its customer base.

As the economic situation remained unstable under the pandemic, the
total number of new projects from the private sector dropped.
Moreover, the Group experienced stringent cost control measures in
government projects in 2021, and some of the Group’s revenue
recognition has fallen to the year 2022. In view of this, the Group’s
revenue for the Year decreased by approximately 33.3% to MOP184.5
million. Gross profit for the Year was MOP43.4 million and the gross
profit margin was 23.5%. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 23
projects on hand, including both public sector and private sector
projects. Furthermore, the Group has continuously submitted new
project tenders to provide some business stability and maintain revenue
growth. Recently, the Group successfully secured three large projects
related to government housing, with a total value of more than MOP88.2
million.

The Group remains in a healthy financial position to overcome the
global economic crisis brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had bank balances (including short-term
bank deposits and pledged bank deposits) of MOP176.0 million and no
bank borrowing, moreover, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately MOP221.2 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

B 5 1ol R
Ly 228

TREY| A EBRE 22021 F 220204 12
A 318 ILFERIREEA4L

2021 2020
2021 % 20204

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEF5 T FEFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(REZ) (TH==%)
E&M engineering works WE TR 180,071 97.6 272,519 98.5
Maintenance and repair services 1R & BB R 4,425 2.4 4,271 1.5
184,496 100.0 276,790 100.0

The Group recorded revenue of MOP184.5 million for the Year, which
represented a year-on-year decrease of 33.3% (2020: MOP276.8
million), the decrease was primarily attributable to the unexpected
continuation of global travel restrictions in the second half of 2021 due
to the COVID-19 pandemic which had constituted a material adverse
impact on tourism and other related industries in Macau region and
thereby affecting the investments in infrastructures and projects in
Macau.

REENAFEHFEWZE184.5FHERMT
@) £ 3R 42 33.3% (2020 4F : 276.8'F & & P
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

Gross profit

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s gross profit
and gross margin for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

B

TRV AEBRE 22021 F 220204 12
A31HIEFERNEFREFEPM :

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 &

Gross Gross Gross Gross
profit margin profit margin
EF EFI= E7 ER=
MOP’000 % MOP’000 %

FEF T FEFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(RREX) (fEE=%)
E&M engineering works BEIIE 40,447 22,5 59,332 21.8
Maintenance and repair services R K G ER 2,992 67.6 499 11.7
43,439 23.5 59,831 21.6

The Group recorded a gross profit of MOP43.4 million for the Year,
which represented a year-on-year decrease of 27.4% (2020: MOP59.8
million), which was primarily attributable to the decrease in contract
revenue during the Year.

The Group’s gross profit margin was 23.5% for the Year, which
represented a slight increase as compared with that for FY 2020 at
21.6%. The increase of gross profit margin on E&M engineering works
and maintenance and repair services were mainly due to the decrease
of compensation paid for overtime labour working hours compared with
FY 2020 and the additional profit margin from several casino and hotel
projects which were awarded before or in the early stage of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The overall profit margin has increased by 1.9
percentage points during the Year.

Other income

Other income increased by MOPO0.3 million to MOP1.3 million (2020:
MOP1.0 million). The increase was mainly attributable to the full year
impact on interest income arising from bank time deposits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

Impairment losses under expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model, net of reversal

The Group’s impairment losses of trade receivables and contract assets
were MOPO0.3 million for the Year (2020: MOPO.3 million), the provisional
rate has increased for the receivables from private companies which
aged longer than a year and one court case with a customer for long
outstanding receivables, the total affected balance was approximately
MOP2.1 million. With the reversal of brought forwarded ECL provision,
the net impact in current year is immaterial. The Group applied a
simplified approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all
trade receivables and contract assets. Trade receivables and contract
assets with individual significant balances are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed collectively using a collective basis with appropriate
groupings.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by MOPO0.3 million to MOP15.6
million for the Year (2020: MOP15.9 million). The decrease was mainly
due to the cost savings from there being no staff welfare, professional
and administrative costs associated with the listing of the Company’s
shares (the “Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 September 2020 (the “Listing”)
recorded for the Year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by MOPO0.2 million or 7.3% to MOP2.9
million for the Year, mainly due to the decrease of profit before tax.

Profit for the Year

The Group’s profit for the Year decreased by MOPO0.5 million or 1.6%,
which was primarily attributable to (i) the combined effect of the
abovementioned items; and (ji) no Listing expense recorded for the Year,
however, there was Listing expenses of MOP15.1 million being
recognised in the prior year. Excluding the Listing expenses, the profit for
the Year would have decreased by MOP15.6 million or 37.3% as
compared with FY 2020.

EHEERE(EHEEERED
BT 2 BEREE - fIRREE
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KRB B 18 A0.3 8 &8Pt (20204 : 0.3
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A2HBHEEBE - AEXESRNES
FEWGRIE & A& 498 E @R EITRER S - &
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BRI TR -

1T B 2
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T0) ° iR A T E BB RN AT E I SRS R
ARpalifh (TR ])) R202069 A11 A&
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MERE 7R o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

Non-generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) financial measure

Net profit excluding the listing expense is a non-GAAP measure used
by the management of the Group to provide additional information on
its operating performance and is not a standard measure under IFRS.
Such adjusted profit takes out the impact of listing expenses, which are
non-recurring and not indicative for evaluating the actual performance
of the Group’s business. The management of the Group believes that
such a non-GAAP measure provides additional information to investors
and others in understanding and evaluating the consolidated results of
operations in the same manner as the management of the Group. The
definition of net profit excluding the listing expenses should not be
considered in isolation or be construed as an alternative to profit for the
year or any other standard measure under IFRS or as an indicator of
operating performance. The adjusted profit of the Group may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management to minimise
financial and operational risks. The Group’s operations mainly rely on
internally generated cash flows from its core business.

In the management of liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
MOP221.2 million (2020: MOP194.7 million). The current ratio of the
Group at 31 December 2021 was 6.8 times (2020: 4.9 times).

The Group has maintained a healthy liquidity position. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had total bank balances (including short-
term bank deposits and pledge bank deposits) of MOP176.0 million
(2020: MOP153.5 million). The Group’s bank balances were mainly in
Macanese Pataca (MOP) and Hong Kong Dollar (HKD).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no bank borrowing (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s share capital and reserves
amounted to MOP5.2 million and MOP231.3 million, respectively (2020:
MOP5.2 million and MOP205.0 million, respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was nil (31
December 2020: nil) as the Group had no outstanding loans and
borrowings or bank overdrafts as at 31 December 2021. The gearing
ratio is calculated as the borrowings divided by the total equity as at the
end of the respective periods and multiplied by 100%.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and MOP. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had no exposure to foreign exchange
contracts, interest, currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS, AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group had no significant investments held and no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the below section headed “Use of Net Proceeds
from the Listing” in this report, the Group had no future plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2021.

EERMELR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE
LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the Listing (the “Net Proceeds”) were
HK$51.6 million (equivalent to approximately MOP53.1 million) after
deducting underwriting fees and commissions and all related expenses.
Details of the proposed use of the Net Proceeds are disclosed in
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the prospectus of the Company
dated 31 August 2020 (the “Prospectus”).

Furthermore, as stated in the announcement of the Company dated 15
October 2021, the Board resolved to change the use of the Net
Proceeds by re-allocating the unutilised Net Proceeds as at 15 October
2021 of HK$6.3 million initially allocated for (i) recruiting additional
skilled professionals and labour; and (ii) acquiring additional
construction machineries and equipment, to fund part of the specific
material costs and the upfront expenditure (excluding performance
bonds) of the several new projects awarded to the Group in the first half
of 2021 (the “New Projects”), including among the others, an air
conditioning system replacement project in public sector which
commenced in April 2021 and a surveillance system project of a casino
hotel in Macau which commenced in March 2021.

With the impact of the recent outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Board considered that the execution of the Group’s business expansion
plan as stated in the Prospectus by recruiting additional skilled
professionals and labour and acquiring additional construction
machineries and equipment was not in the best interest of the Group.
The Board considered the change in the use of the Net Proceeds was
fair and reasonable as this would allow the Company to deploy its
financial resources more effectively to enhance the profitability of the
Group and was therefore in the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. For further details of the change in the use of
the Net Proceeds, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 October 2021.
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The following table sets out the planned use and actual use of the Net & #77 202112 A31 B8y 218 A &
Proceeds as at 31 December 2021: ERBAMEIIEFENBR

Planned usage

of Net Proceeds

(as revised from

time to time)

as stated in the

Prospectus and Utilised Net

the announcement Utilised Net Proceeds Unutilised Net
of the Company Proceeds (up to Proceeds as at
dated 15 October during 31 December 31 December
2021 the Year 2021) 2021

ARERRAAT

A 52021
10B15AMAE BEAME #2021
Firiftt 215 A TERE 125310
FSRERE RAEEEHA (BZ2021% ABA
(BREE3T) FERERE 12A311) FERERE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HKS$ million) (HK$ million)

ET) (§ (BE#T)

Funding part of the specific material costsand ~ A7Z4 74202046 30 &
the upfront expenditure of certain projects FREMER RS ERE
the Group had on hand as at 30 June 2020 BE (ERRARER)H

and the Specific Tendered Projects BEMHERMGES T

(as defined in the Prospectus) REHHIES 328 76 328 0
Funding part of the specific material costs and ~ AFEE AT ERH

the upfront expenditure of the New Projects TS MBS HE S 6.3 6.3 6.3 0
Financing the issuance of performance bonds A& % B AR E 114 0 11.4 0
Recruiting additional skilled professionals REFLARMEEAER

and labour 41 1.1 1.0 1.1 0
Acquiring additional construction machineries & F ZEEHH LR

and equipment 0 NANER NATER NATER

51.6 14.9 51.6 0

As at 31 December 2021, all Net Proceeds were fully utilised and have 7202112 A31 8 ' 2 ¥ MBRBFED
been utilised in accordance with the planned usages (as revised from BESHEI D RIEBBRERELAAFBHE
time to time) as stated in the Prospectus and the announcement of the 2021410 5 15 BRI A& Frilt /95181 ik (45
Company dated 15 October 2021. TEHER]) BA »
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding performance
bonds of MOP6.7 million (2020: Nil) which were secured by pledged
bank deposits of MOP1.9 million (2020: Nil). The Group has obtained
total credit facilities of MOP149.6 million (2020: MOP5.2 million) and
this credit facilities were secured by the promissory notes of
approximately MOP164.5 million (2020: MOP5.7 million).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledged assets or
other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group entered into labour contracts with its employees in
accordance with the labour laws of Macau. The remuneration package
offered to employees generally includes basic salaries, allowances,
benefits-in-kind and bonus. In general, the Group determines the
remuneration package of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority.

As the main contractor for some of the projects undertaken, the Group
applies for work permits for its non-Macau resident workers on a
project-by-project basis. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 59
(2020: 73) employees in Macau, comprising 40 Macau residents and 19
non-Macau residents (2020: 43 Macau residents and 30 non-Macau
residents).

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 21 August 2020, which was effective upon the Listing.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants had or may
have made to the Group. Since the adoption of the Share Option
Scheme and up to 31 December 2021, no share option had been
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROSPECTS

The year 2022 is set to continue to create an unprecedented economic
upheaval for Macau. With the emergence of the Omicron strain, the
COVID-19 pandemic remains unabated. The recovery of the global
economy is facing a new wave of uncertainties. Regardless of its
preparedness, Macau is not immune to further ravages.

The Group believes that the E&M industry in Macau will remain in a
sluggish state in the coming financial year. Though the much-
anticipated recovery of Macau’s economy is yet to be seen, there
seems to be some light at the end of the tunnel. The pandemic
preventive strategy implemented in Macau has always been regarded
as one of the best in Asia. The vaccination rate surpassed the required
threshold much sooner than most cities around the world. Macau’s
strategic location in the Greater Bay Area has enabled it to emerge from
the economic recession much earlier than other cities. The management
is, therefore, relatively confident that the worst is already over. Looking
forward, the coming financial year can only be better than the previous
one.

With a focus on stringent cost control and rationalization on all fronts,
the Group is cautiously optimistic about the sustainability and future
development of the E&M and construction industries in Macau.

Amid the economic recession, the Macau Government has
commissioned numerous new construction projects. Aiming for more
sustainable business and capitalizing on market opportunities, the
Group took advantage of its positive position by exploring potential
business opportunities, including tendering for new projects in 2022
and beyond.

Ultimately, the Directors place great emphasis on the importance of the
Group establishing and maintaining excellent credentials in both the
public and private sectors. The Group is therefore well positioned and
prepared to capture potential opportunities within the market. The
management believes that is the only way to ensure the very best
performance in the long run.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINAL AND SPECIAL DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of HK2.03 cents (2020: Nil) per Share for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Final Dividend”) to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

In light of the retained earnings of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
without prejudice to the healthy and sustained development of the
Company, in order to offer a better return to the Shareholders, the
Board has recommended a special dividend of HK3.97 cents per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Special Dividend”) to the
Shareholders in addition to the Final Dividend. The Board considers that
the payment of the Special Dividend will not have material impact to the
Group’s financial position.

The payment of the Final Dividend and the Special Dividend is subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”). Upon the approval by the
Shareholders, the Final Dividend and the Special Dividend are expected
to be paid on or around Friday, 24 June 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “ESG Report”) issued by the Company. The ESG Report
has been prepared in both Chinese and English and is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Reporting Scope

The ESG Report presents the ESG performance of the Group’s day-to-
day operations around the provision of electrical and mechanical
engineering and management and repair services during the Reporting
Period. The relevant environmental KPIs are further restricted to the
Group’s corporate offices and a warehouse in Macau, which have a
significant impact on operations of the Group.

Reporting Standard

In compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (“ESG Guidance”) in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the ESG Report is prepared in
accordance with the four reporting principles — Materiality,
Quantitative, Balance and Consistency — set out therein.

° Materiality: The Group continually communicates with
stakeholders to understand and identify the ESG areas that are
most important to them.

o Quantitative: Where feasible, information is presented in a
quantitative manner and accompanied by narrative, interpretation
and comparative analysis.

° Balance: The ESG Report is prepared in an unbiased manner, with
clear explanations of positive and negative impacts, enabling
stakeholders to make a reasonable assessment of the Group’s
overall performance.

° Consistency: The ESG report presents information on a consistent
basis, enabling stakeholders to analyse and assess changes in
performance over time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEREREE

Board Approval

The ESG Report was confirmed and approved by the Board on 25
March 2022.

sle)

BEEHE
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R o

Opinions and Feedbacks

Macau E&M is committed to maintaining relationships with the
stakeholders by interacting with them on a regular basis. We are
keen to hear your feedback and offer ways for you to contact us
regarding this ESG Report and related performance:

Email: info@macauem.com

Phone: (853) 2872 0006

Mail: Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo, No. 56-68, Edificio Industrial
Lee Cheung, 13 Andar D, Macau

RRNREE

BITHEZ NN RN s EE T R R -
BPEHREzES - RAFZIRE BT
MREE & BTRERE AAHEN
ESG#&E M AR KA ERF :

EE : info@macauem.com

T L5 (853) 2872 0006

TEF U - JBFI G558 55 1K 56-68 5%
FETIXKE13EDE

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY
Sustainability Governance and Risk Management

The Group is committed to overseeing sustainability efforts and
achieving operational excellence through robust corporate governance.
Ultimate responsibility for ESG rests with the Board. It provides
leadership and oversight on all major matters, including setting the
Group’s overall management and business strategy, revising risk
management and internal control systems, overseeing the performance
of senior management and ensuring effective management of
sustainability matters across all divisions.

While the Board oversees the overall direction of the Group’s ESG
practices, an ESG Working Group comprising multi-disciplinary staff
has been established during the Reporting Period to initiate individual
ESG programs and regularly measure their performance to identify
areas for improvement and create sustainable value for stakeholders.

Taking a long-term perspective is the key to success. In order to lay out
a sustainability strategy, during the Reporting Period, the Group, with
the assistance of a third-party consultant, identified current deficiencies
in setting specific targets. It hopes to improve governance capabilities,
data integrity, resource input and staff awareness over the next two
years, thereby improving its ability to set scientific and actionable
targets.
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Regulatory Compliance EEER

Regulatory compliance is taken very seriously by the Group. Each AEE EEHEHREET SR - SIS LB
department is committed to keeping abreast of the latest regulatory THREETHEEBENSHIESEHE  IUER
developments relevant to its work in order to ensure compliance in its  ZiEA R - M MG 2 EIE R M E S iR
operations and thus avoid fines or litigation for non-compliance. The  :f7) ° FREREHARNEE R LB HEE

following are the laws and regulations that the Group considers to be N &RREEFEREENAEER -

significant to its business and the status of compliance during the
Reporting Period.

Laws and regulations that
have a significant impact

on the Group Possible material impacts
HEAEBEEAZEN
EEER ARREATE
Emissions Law No. 2/91/M The violation of relevant laws
and regulations may result in
General Regulation of Public administrative and economic
Place approved by penalties, and may also affect
Administrative Regulation the progress of the project
No. 28/2004 and damage the reputation of
the Group.
Law No. 22/2020
HERR 2/91/M AR EEBBERER TR ERIT
WA BEER - B Re s B

%28/2004 SR 1TBUL IR L AR BEETEEREEBE -

Compliance status

During the Reporting Period,
there were no violations of
relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on
the Group.

RE|BERA - W EE(TZEER

ERERZEHAEEELRS
TE-

(RHEMFTRIRNE)
28 22/2020 5% 412
Employment Law No. 7/2008 The violation of employment- During the Reporting Period,
related laws and regulations there were no violations of
Law No. 21/2009 may lead to a large number relevant laws and regulations
of talent losses, face administrative ~ that have a significant impact on
Law No. 8/2020 penalties, and may lead to the Group.
litigation cases.
(= 7/2008 5% A2 BEREBEBERERTRE RBEHAR - WEERZESHEEH
ﬁjﬁi/\z—ow% HBRTHRE FEEEZEHAEEELRE
5521/2009 57 % gl WRAIRE B BGRAARM - & o
5 8/2020 5% A 12
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Health and safety

RERZE

Laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the Group
HASEEEATEN

57

Decree Law No. 44/91/M

Law No. 3/2014

5 44/91/MEES

5 3/2014 5052

Possible material impacts

T 2

]

The violation of health and
safety-related laws and
regulations can lead to
administrative and financial
penalties and affect project
schedules. Safety incidents
can threaten the safety of
employees and lead to costly
litigation.
BERERERZZHEEEEER
AR EHITR MM R E - &
BIHEEE - L2 BWATEEA
BEEIX2WEHSBNFA
BN o

Compliance status

SRR E

During the Reporting Period,
there were no violations of
relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on
the Group.

RIERA - W EE(ZEE
AEERZEFHARHELRE
=%

rE

Labour standards

ot - 435 S
BIRE

Law No. 7/2008

Chief Executive’s Dispatch
No. 343/2008

Chief Executive’s Dispatch
No. 344/2008

% 7/2008 AR
£5,343/2008 TR B LR

2 344/2008 5 /TR B #L R

The violation of relevant laws
and regulations may result in
administrative and economic
penalties, and damage the
Group’s reputation.

8 BB E A T BB 1T
B AEERT - WBEALE
BE .

During the Reporting Period,
there were no violations of
relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on
the Group.

RI|BERA - W EE(TZEER
FRERZEHARBELRSE

B/ 48R
-
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Product
responsibility

i
So
il
3

Laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the Group

)

Chief Executive’s Dispatch

No. 88/2010

Law No. 44/91/M

Law No. 3/2014

% 88/2010 5 1TTHR B #LR
5 44/91/M 5REE

5.3/2014 5% A2

Possible material impacts

T @

]

The violation of relevant
laws and regulations not
only affects reputation and
competitiveness in the
market, but may also lead to
administrative penalties,
exposing the Group to high
litigation and seriously affecting
the Group’s profitability.

ESHBERERTETER

SEBREREENSTOHF
hoEe %ﬁﬁﬁﬁg BEX

SEREHRDBER - LEEF
EXREENBNEES

Compliance status

SRR E

During the Reporting Period,
there were no violations of
relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on
the Group.

RIERA - W EE(ZEE

AEERZEFHARHELRE
=%

rE

Anti-corruption

Law No. 19/2009

££19/2009 7% 2

The violation of relevant laws
and regulations can weaken
the Group’s ability to operate
and damage its reputation.

EERRAEAR A BRI SR
SEEZRNUBEARE -

During the Reporting Period, there
were no corruption lawsuits
against the Group or its
employees, and there were
no violations of relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.
R|EHA - BEERESEMST
STYAREBERHE B TRE - &
BEEMERERERZE
REFEELBRETE -
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Stakeholder Engagement

Staying true to the commitments to provide exceptional services to
customers, instil pride in employees, and to delight stakeholders, the
Group holds deep respect for every customer, employee, shareholder,
investor, supplier and wider community. In addition, the Group values
the views of its stakeholders and engages with them through its day-to-
day operations and different communication channels to build a
relationship of mutual trust.

o0

A AER S 2

AEERTAEPRHEEBRY  BEET
B SRR BN SRR T M - B U
EFP BI BR REE HEBLEER
REHERREE  WH > REEERFN
HETHER BBAFLERTERNER
REBMNEHETES - UELEERIE -

Main stakeholders and communication channels used during the Reporting Period

BEHRNEERNDERLRBERRE

Shareholders and Investors o Announcement

o Annual Report and Interim Report

° Annual General Meeting

° Press Release

° Company Website
BRRNMIEE o

e FHREPHERE

e  KREBEFKE

e HH

o AEIHHUL

T

Customer o Satisfaction survey
LSS e MEEHRAE
Employee ° Regular meeting
° Annual performance appraisal
° Internal memo/email/WeChat
EE e  EHEH
e FEXRREZ
s  RNEEREBHE
Supplier ° On-site assessment
HEm o HBFA
Community ° Company Website
o o NS S

In addition to the usual communication channels, the Group has
designed an ESG survey. The questions selected for the survey take
into account global, regional and industry trends, regulatory
requirements and expectations, as well as ESG issues relevant to the
markets in which the Group operates. The participation of employees,
management and external stakeholders helped the Group to assess the
materiality of various ESG aspects.
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Very Important
FEEE

~

Anti-corruption

Community Investment
#HE@IE Green procurem

RERE

R&EB
Employment system
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Importance to Business

HEBNERE

According to the survey results, assessing the importance of each issue
from both a stakeholder and corporate perspective, the Group identified
occupational health and safety, anti-corruption, employment systems,
training and development, child and forced labour, and product
responsibility as the most important ESG issues in its business. The
ESG report highlights the Group’s efforts and performance on these six
identified important issues, while also describing the five secondary
issues related primarily to environmental protection and supply chain
management.

In future, the Group will continue to strengthen its interaction with
stakeholders and expand more diversified channels, such as conducting
questionnaires among more internal and external stakeholders to
increase opportunities to understand their expectations and build
mutually beneficial relationships.

REFHEER N aB@T REXAEN
HEEFENEZN  AEERFIHBER
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OUR COMMITMENTS
Developing Our People

For Macau E&M, employees are seen as one of the most important
partners in expanding the Group’s business. Therefore, the Group
invests in creating a healthy, safe, fair and positive work environment
where employees feel engaged, valued, and motivated.

Protecting the Health and Safety of Employees and
Workers

As a firm engaging in construction industry, Macau E&M believes that
the health and safety of employees and subcontractor workers in the
workplace are important to the operations of its business. The Group
has formulated and executed on its “Work Site Safety Reference”,

OO0

=PI B A
BEAT

ERIKREER  EERRREEXHT&
BEZMAERH - At ARERELE—
BfEE 22 RAFRBEEHOTIERE &
BREARBR - BERERSGME -

REREERTIANRBERZE

ERRFERERTITENRR  BIHER
REERDEBMTIAETESMNRERE
PHEXBLERER - ARECDHIFT A
(T 22E) HEMG - FIEX &2

which provides guidelines on fire prevention, manual work, construction

SR REA R EEREMRIES -

materials and personal proactive equipment use.

Working environment
maintenance

TR M

Offices are equipped with air-conditioning facilities to maintain proper ventilation
and humidity. Cleaning staff is arranged from time to time on a daily basis to
maintain a clean and tidy environment. In addition, a corner for snacks, drinks and
healthy food is provided for employee to have a relax when needed.
MAEEBEEFARE  REBZSNBERANEE - BRTRLHIFZAR - REFRE
BOR o o RN R RERERRHNER  HEESEFTERHERI O -

Subcontractor monitoring

The Group and its sub-contractors maintain a close working relationship to ensure
a continuous safe working environment on projects. Relevant workers are only
allowed to work after obtaining Occupational Health and Safety Card for
Construction Industry.

The Group’s Engineering Department is responsible for training on-site workers in
high-risk positions and checking that workers are wearing protective equipment.
AEFERESBEAREEDOITERE  BREBNIEREFELZE2 - HEIA
ARGEEERBERRLE RS IE:

AEETRFPFIABHRGSEREUTAETEI  BETAZEFHHERE -

Work injury handling

TEERER

In order to properly respond to construction safety accidents, the Group has formulated
the “Accident Handling Guide” ({25 & i 12 #§ 51 )) to make orderly arrangements and
reduce hazards in case of emergencies. In the event of a work-related accident, the
project management team will promptly assist the injured person, review the cause of
the accident, submit an accident investigation report to the Group and take measures
to prevent the occurrence of similar accidents.

RTEZEREBIZ2EW  AEEGF(EREEES)  MEEZBEATHMESR
ek BERE - MEATGER BHEEBEKELRFHNESE  BRFHR
CARKRERREHAETHRE - WS G AU E R E -
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During the Reporting Period, five work injury incidents occurred,
involving four employee and a subcontractor worker. The main cause of
the incidents were was fine gravel and sand accidentally getting into
eyes on the construction sites. The Group will continue to track health
and safety performance on a monthly basis based on the number of
workplace injuries to ensure the effectiveness of protective equipment
and measures.

Aside from the above management practices, the Group is mindful of
the potential safety impact of social activities on employees and
workers. In view of the significant impact that pandemics continue to
have on work and life, the Group has always made the health of its
employees a top priority. The Group has established pandemic
procedures, allocated resources to combat pandemics and ensured
timely communication. For example, pandemic prevention messages
are delivered to emphasise the importance of personal hygiene;
employees are required to wear masks and keep their distance; a green
health code is required to enter casino and government related
premises; and unnecessary group meetings are cancelled to prevent
pandemics from occurring.

Maintaining a Comprehensive Employment System

The Group highly values its employees and strives to have a robust
employment system. It has the “Employee Handbook” ({8 TFft)) to
provide guidance regarding staff remuneration, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination, labour standards and benefits.

An effort is made by the Group to go beyond minimum requirements
and to provide a protective work environment through enhanced or new
policies, including those relating to fair opportunities and anti-
discrimination. Recruitment must be conducted in accordance with the
“Employee Recruitment Procedures” (( 8 T R 22 ¥ ). In relation to
promotion, HR department and senior management are responsible for
processes relating to employee evaluation and promotion. All practices
do not discriminate on the basis of age, gender, religion, or politics. The
anti-discrimination recruitment and promotion process ensures the
Group’s ability to attract and retain diverse and qualified employees.
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The Group’s Diversity Policy Statement, which has been developed
during the Reporting Period, further ensures that due consideration is
given to diversity in age, gender, qualifications and experience in the
workplace, particularly in the recruitment and promotion process. The
Group’s ongoing initiatives to promote gender diversity at all levels are
beginning to bear fruit. As at 31 December 2021, there were 11 female
employees working for the Group, representing 18.6% of the total
workforce, an increase of 2.2% compared to last year.

Competitive benefits such as provident fund, training allowances,
bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and medical
benefits are offered to every employee. Besides, the Group has
established the Long Service Employee Award during the Reporting
Period to thank employees who have 10 years of service for their
continued contribution. A total of six employees were entitled to this
special benefit.

Regarding the protection of human rights, the “Code of Ethics” ((B% &
=<7 HI|)) states that the Group recognises the fundamental and universal
nature of human rights in accordance with international agreements and
treaties such as the United Nations International Human Rights
Conventions and the International Labour Organization. At the time of
recruitment, the original identity documents of successful candidates are
checked to ensure compliance and to avoid the employment of child
labour. In addition, the management of each department regularly
prepares team schedules to avoid overtime work and reviews its
workflow from time to time. If overtime is required, employees must not
be forced to work and will be compensated accordingly.

If there is a suspected violation of the employment system or labour
standards, employees can report it to their supervisors, human
resources managers, or even submit a written complaint to the Board.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any reports of
employment-related misconduct, such as equal opportunity,
discrimination, diversity, child labour and forced labour.
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Investing in Training and Development

The Group is actively committed to helping its employees realise their
full potential. Its talent development is focused on diversifying the skills
and knowledge of its team members to support a diverse business, as
well as industry development and the Macau community.

Employees are expected to continuously strive to improve and update
their knowledge and skills and to participate in professional training
courses arranged by the Group, in accordance with the provisions of
the Group’s “Code of Ethics” ((E%Z:&1E<rHl)). In addition, employees
are free to explore and apply for external training resources. The training
programme mainly includes:

Internal training

REBEEIIRBERE

REBBEBRYNNEDEERDEFEES -
HEAF BHROEHZEEBEBZK B ARG
Mzl LR ZTENER - ARTT
FRRMRMTRE -

HRASEN(BXERTADRE BTk
TG NS REHEMB NG - W2 HE
AEBMLZHNEREIIRIE - ptH - BB
BHEERNMBBIMNIEINER - HIFHEIE
EEE:

Training provided by internal speakers that intends to anchor the Group’s mission,

vision, values, and equip team members with the required skills to perform their

role.
A A B0 a8 B IR 1S D)
HEITHBEMT AL -

MBI

External training

| SEZERAEENES  BR - BEE LABBKER

Training provided by external institutions when internal training cannot meet the

Group’s business development. After the external training, the trained employees
share what they have gained with other colleagues through sharing sessions.

S EBIE I

EABFINTEEREAREXBERNOBRT - BINEIBIR IR - SNBIEFIAE

Rt RIEEEBNFEHAMRAETSFWHE -

Self-education

Improvement of professional and general knowledge in the employees’ spare time

through the Internet, external institutions and other channels.

as

During the Year, the majority of the Group’s employees received
relevant training in accordance with their job responsibilities, with an
average of 7.0 hours of training per employee.

Driving Operational Excellence

The high quality of construction is the Group’s business principle. The
Group strictly controls the quality of works to protect the interests of its
customers. At the same time, it is important for the Group to consider
the impact of its decisions when selecting or engaging suppliers.
Through responsible development, the Group believes it can make a
positive impact beyond its own business.

FREHE S BB R EMRE  HRE THREERA TR —RAH

FR-AERERFOERERBEEBRERSA
BEH - BAEEFHRXT7.0E/NEEY -

RSN E
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Upholding Corporate Ethics

Devoted to operating with integrity and the highest ethical standards,
the Group is committed to preventing corruption through corporate
governance, internal controls and risk management, and is subject to
ongoing oversight by the Board of Directors. To ensure that all team
members work in an ethical manner, the Group has developed the
“Employee Handbook” ({ & TF1f)) and the “Code of Ethics” (B &
1= <7 81 )) that sets out guidelines in areas such as anti-corruption and
anti-bribery.

The Group organised a study of the Macau Commission Against
Corruption’s “Corruption Prevention Tips for Private Companies” for its
employees during the Reporting Period to further ensure that they are
aware of the applicable laws, regulations and relevant guidelines related
to their roles and responsibilities, as well as the definition and handling
of corruption. A quiz was also designed by the Group to examine the
learning of employees. All employees passed the quiz.

All employees or partners are actively encouraged to report suspected
breaches of anti-corruption standards or other unethical behaviour
anonymously to the HR Department or other relevant departments by
telephone or email, in accordance with standard operating procedures.

Developing High Quality Services

To create exemplary products and services for customers is an
imperative responsibility of the Group. To this end, the Group has
employed a set of sound quality and schedule control process in its daily
operations. The “Project Management Guidelines” (( T218 B B12$&83!))
also set out procedures for contracting, execution and completion of
works.

The Project Management Team conducts regular project inspections
and hold weekly progress meetings for each project. At these meetings,
all parties responsible for the project discuss safety, environmental,
schedule, design and site co-ordination issues to ensure that the
project is executed to plan and standards and to prevent major
problems.
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Macau E&M values the customers’ opinions on the its products and
services. All customer comments are discussed with the relevant
departments, including the Project Management Team, and
improvement plans are then proposed. During the Reporting Period, the
Group received no complaints from customers.

Traditional industries are embracing the Internet, big data and artificial
intelligence at an unprecedented rate, and the construction industry is
no exception. It is the Group’s responsibility to ensure that its systems
are fit for purpose and that its employees act with integrity. To prevent
the leakage and misuse of confidential information, the Group has
adopted measures such as the use of confidentiality agreements and
non-disclosure agreements. In addition, the Group is equipped with the
latest anti-virus software for protection and encryption.

With respect to intellectual property rights (“IPR”), the Group continues
to use its trademarks, brand names, trade secrets and other IPR to
expand its brand awareness and growth. While protecting its IPR from
infringement, the Group is also committed to respecting the IPR of its
partners. Guidelines on the protection of confidential information and
IPR are referred to in the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and
Technology Resources Use Policy.

Promoting Sustainability in the Supply Chain

Leveraging on the importance of supply chain management to its own
operations, the Group selects its suppliers and subcontractors based
on unified standards and has established the “Engineering Procurement
and Subcontracting Guidelines” ({ T2 & & 5 #1#531)) to specify the
guidelines for working with suppliers.

With a view to ensuring that suppliers meet the Group’s requirements, the
Project Management Team are jointly involved in the evaluation and
selection of suppliers based on commercial terms, cost, reputation, quality
assurance, business management model and business coverage area.
Meanwhile, potential suppliers are required to comply with the Group’s
“Code of Ethics” (B % 38 7= <7 81])), which sets out the requirements for
suppliers in terms of maintaining ethical behaviour and ensuring project
safety as a condition of business. The Project Management Team is also
responsible for adapting the procurement guidelines and suppliers’ code of
ethics as appropriate to market needs.
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The Group has also embraced the shift in the market towards green
behaviours. During the Reporting Period, it has developed a Sustainable
Supply Chain Management Policy Statement, which demonstrates the
Group’s commitment to supplier ESG risk reviews, the use of green
products and regular communication and feedback with suppliers.
Guided by this policy statement, in future the Group will increasingly
consider incorporating green procurement into its procurement
processes and encourage better performance of suppliers and
contractors in terms of corporate social responsibility and
environmental management systems.

Improving Environmental Performance

Macau E&M places emphasis on the environmental impact of the
Group’s operations and project works, and practices the Group’s
sustainable development philosophy. To reduce damage to the
environment, the Group strictly complies with all relevant laws and
regulations and takes into account numerous natural environmental
factors in its overall operation plan.

With a view to further managing the impact on the environment, an
Environmental Protection Policy Statement has been developed during
the Reporting Period to systematically demonstrate the direction of the
Group’s operations with regard to environmental protection. As stated
in the policy statement, the Group will continually seek opportunities to
improve the efficient use of energy, water and natural resources and to
take management actions to improve environmental performance
through:

° Adopting the principles of reduce, reuse and recycle to increase
efficiency in the use of energy, paper, water and other resources

° Adopting internationally recognised standards or equivalent local
standards to assess the greenhouse gas emissions from
operations and disclose relevant data

o Eliminating the use of products and services which cause
environment pollution

° Providing sufficient information, guidance, training and supervision

to foster an environmental protection culture within the Group to
raise the environmental awareness of employees
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Preserving Resources

In the sustainability questionnaire conducted during the Reporting
Period, the Group found that water was the most important concern for
stakeholders compared to other environmental issues. In its daily
operations, the Group uses water mainly for offices and staff cleaning,
which consumes relatively little water. In addition, there were not any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

During the Reporting Period, the Group enhanced the integrity of its
data by collecting water consumption in the offices in addition to
accounting for water used in the warehouse. The total water
consumption was 130.45 cubic metres. In the warehouse, water
consumption was reduced by 96.4% compared to 2020. Because
during 2020, the warehouse was used as temporary accommodation for
employees and workers who were unable to return home due to
Macau’s anti-epidemic policy.

As to energy usage, it is mainly dedicated to fuel consumption for
company vehicles and electricity usage. The Group has been working
to conserve energy by requiring employees to turn off lights and air-
conditioning at the end of their shift; continuing to optimise temperature
control in the workplace by limiting temperature settings to prevent
overcooling; and replacing conventional lamps with brighter and more
energy-efficient LED lamps. In addition, the Group’s vehicles are
regularly serviced to keep fuel consumption within normal limits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed 12.88 MWh of petrol
and 35.33 MWh of electricity. In the warehouse, a 79.3% electricity
consumption was achieved compared to 2020. Please see the
paragraph above on water consumption for the main reason for the
change.

Managing Emissions

Macau E&M understands that it is inevitable for the Group to generate
emissions during the course of operations. Nevertheless, the Group is
committed to doing everything possible to minimising negative
environmental impacts, particularly reducing greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions in an effort to contribute to mitigating climate change.

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s GHG emissions were mainly from
Scope 2 purchased electricity (indirect emissions from energy), followed
by Scope 1 mobile combustion sources (direct emissions). Detailed
quantitative data can be found in the “Performance Overview” chapter
of this ESG Report.
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Recognising that the largest source of GHG emissions is the use of
electricity, the Group continues to remind employees to turn off lights,
computers, air conditioners, printers and other energy-consuming
appliances before leaving the workplace to cultivate good energy-
saving habits. Also, during the Reporting Period, the Group’s vehicles
were replaced with newer ones with lower air pollutants and GHG
emissions.

A total of 0.51 tonnes of waste' was generated by the offices during the
Reporting Period, a reduction of 0.57 tonnes compared to 2020. The
waste was collected and disposed of by waste disposal companies.

Waste type
EEZE Y3 5l

REAR
HEER IR

Waste paper
Domestic garbage

o0

RBBZFANWBERBHIREAE - £ &
BAEIRERB T TR TIEGMZA
EHEMERE B =H  TEIRREMRE
ERE BRRGOEMEEE - I |E
Hi - AREE@HCER/ZERTRY MR
EREBHFRERRNFILER

WMER - PAEAHEEL0STHEERZY
#2020 5554 0.57 1 - BEEE Y R EEEYRIE
NalELRE -

Amount (tonne)

2E (W)
2021 2020
2021 5 2020 4F
0.26 0.45
0.25 0.63

The Group has been promoting a paperless office, for example, by
introducing an office automation system, promoting the use of shared
documents and soft copies and reducing paper documents to reduce
waste. Meanwhile, to address the issue of plastic waste, the Group has
replaced single-use plastics with biodegradable and washable straws,
cutlery, cups and food containers from 2020 onwards.

Contributing to a Green Community

To reduce the effect businesses have on the environment and natural
resources, the Group is exploring ways to integrate the concept of
sustainability into its future operations. Realising that building green
communities requires the combined efforts of all stakeholders, the
Group promotes environmental awareness and behaviour not only
among its employees but also in its supply chain. Guided by its
Environmental Policy Statement and Sustainable Supply Chain
Management Policy Statement, when selecting suppliers, the Group will
ensure that its expectations on relevant social and environmental issues
are clearly communicated so that its values are aligned; and when
selecting subcontractors, the Group will use the environmental
performance as a key evaluation criterion.

! No hazardous waste was generated.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

AEE—EHSEAERD - OIASIARA
BERG EEERAXZEXHRETE
AR ADEAXH AR D IRE - R - R
IRIBBREYIFE - AERE B 2020 F AR 4
WEBREBEANRE - EE HTFRRYA
BERE-RMEZR -

REZKEHE

BTRIEXRHRERARERNTE K
SETIERZBAFEEBSMAERKE
BEITE - RBFERZECHLRFZMAN
SEAAT KBS AEETEEREER T
EHERTRERREBZNRTS - ECGRRE
BERBH) (A HERERERERREHR)
MIEET  EREHERE  ARESERE
EEHRETE MREMENHE - fEmE
HEEBRT 23 £EEDEEE  ~%
BRI DU E BB ST EBIRE -

! WHmELBEERY



OO0

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERRE

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW FEME

Environmental RiE

Key environmental performance indicators

HRREAEMIER

Air Pollutant emissions? 2= &5 ¥ HE bk 2

NO A EALY) 0.53 1.98 kg T

SO, it ¥ 0.02 0.02 kg TR

RSP A] Ik A\ )F REHL ) 0.04 0.643° kg T3

GHG Emissions i& = 50 B& HE i

Scope 1 Direct emissions 3.72 3.05 tonnes of carbon dioxide

HE1EEYENR equivalent
WE—S(rIRE 2

Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions 28.97¢ 8.26° tonnes of carbon dioxide

#[E 2 LR AN equivalent
Wik E S

Total GHG emissions 32.69 11.31 tonnes of carbon dioxide

A oo &

ABFNRERBHENE equivalent

W — & binE =

GHG intensity (by area) 0.015 0.005 tonnes of carbon dioxide
BERERE (RERE) equwalent/sqm
—SE(bIREE TR
GHG intensity (by employee) 0.554 0.155 tonnes of carbon dioxide
BAERETE (KLEE) equivalent/employee

E-ftirEE &S
Hazardous waste B EEZEY)

Total hazardous waste B EEEHEE o 0  tonnes A
Hazardous waste intensity (by area) 0 0 tonnes/sgm
BEBEEYRE (RER) g, 75 oK
Hazardous waste intensity (by employee) 0 0 tonnes/employee
BEEEYRE (REE) W, g8
Non-hazardous waste EEEEY)
Total non-hazardous waste #E=FEEYE S 0.52 1.08  tonnes M
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) 0.001 0.015 tonnes/sqm M ,F J5 2K
mEREYRE (REE)
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by employee) 0.009 0.015 tonnes/employee
mEBREYRE (RES) W& 8
Energy Consumption AR 5%
Petrol /7 12.88 10.54  MWh JKEL RS
Electricity & 77 35.33 10.445  MWh JK EL B
Total energy consumption BEJREFEAR = 48.21 20.99  MWh JKELFF
Energy intensity (by area) 8£JR % € (IR EA) 0.022 0.010  MWh/sgqm JKELRS /F 75K
Energy intensity (by employee) 8£J8 % (% EE) 0.817 0.287  MWh/employee
JER, B8
Water Consumption F7k
Total water consumption /K& = 130.45 287.23°  m3iLAK
Water intensity (by area) FB7K % [E (2 ETE) 0.060 0.228  m¥/sqm 375K, F 5K
Water intensity (by employee) Fi/KZ[E (1R & 2.224 3.935  m%employee /75K & &
2 Emission factor is referenced to HKEx “How to prepare an ESG Report — BEMAT2ERTBRS A NI HEESGIRE
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. — Kg%2  IRRBREBURIRAOERIES! ] -
s Distance travelled by vehicles is estimated in terms of fuel consumption based HRITEBRBEEBERE T RENERER

on the Energy Utilisation Index — Transport Sector of the Hong Kong Electrical

and Mechanical Services Department.

— BERBFEIERR - UREREEME -

4 Emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity of the offices and KERAENLREBEHENEENRE -
warehouse.

5 Emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity of the warehouse. REBEBEEENERE

6 Data is only available for the warehouse. HIBREHANEE -
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Social H=

Key social performance indicators

HRELTSENER

Total employees’ [EE & &7

By gender M 7] Male B4 48 61
Female Z 1% 11 12

By age group F#z 48 5] Under 30 30 A T~ 9 12
30-50 30 £ 50 5% 37 49
Over 50 50 5 UA £ 13 12

By employment type {E{E 457! Full-time 2B 53 64
Part-time 3% 5% 6 9

Total #£&t 59 73

Total subcontractor workers® B & T A5

By gender M5l Male 514 40 11
Female 2t o] 0

By age group & #4873 Under 30 3055 A T~ 9 0
30-50 30 £50 5% 28 9
Over 50 50 5% A = 3 2

Total #£&t 40 11

Employee turnover rate & TH k=&

By gender M5 Male 514 38.5% 30.9%
Female Z 1% 8.7% 0.0%

By age group & #: 487 Under 30 305 A T~ 38.1% 32.0%
30-50 30 £ 50 5% 34.9% 17.8%
Over 50 50 5% LA 24.0% 48.3%

Total #£&t 33.3% 26.4%

All employees are in Macau. 7 PR (B B &P FORPT ©
8 All subcontractor are full-time and in Macau. 8 B A2 B AR -
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Key social performance indicators

RRELEAENIER

Health and safety* @EK Z 2 °

Work-related injuries (employees) TIS{AZ (&) 4 1
Lost days due to work-related injuries (employees)
HAIBER(EE)BAIIERH 33 2
Work-related injuries (subcontractor workers)
THERGEBEERIA) 1 1
Lost days due to work-related injuries
(subcontractor workers)
AIGHERGEEEIA)BRIERR 1 2.5
Percentage of employees trained S I|{EEF 2Lt
By gender 1 5l Male F 1% 60.4% 18.0%
Female %% 72.7% 16.7%
By employee category {E{E 485l Front-line employees
—iREE 55.1% 12.7%
Junior Management
NREEANE 100.0% 0.0%
Mid-level Management
hREEAR 100.0% 0.0%
Senior Management
=REBAE 100.0% 83.3%
Total 5t 62.7% 17.8%
Average training hours ¥33 3 JI| 5 &
By gender M5l Male 514 7.33 8.14
Female 2z % 6.00 6.00
By employee category & & %8 5/l Front-line employees
—#E8 2.81 4.13
Junior Management
MNBEBRANE 2.00 0.00
Mid-level Management
hREEAR 2.00 0.00
Senior Management
SREEAE 29.42 13.7
Total #5t 7.04 7.81
Total suppliers it FERG 4 &
By region [& Macau &9 163 105
Hong Kong &7 29 39
Mainland China = B A1t 2 0
Total &t 194 144
Anti-corruption Training X &551% 3
Total training hours of employees received
RIS 50 -
Total training hours of employees received
1B B X742 10 -
Total &t 60 -

° There were no work-related fatalities in the past three years (including the  ° RBE=ZF(BRERESH RN WERTIERR

Reporting Period). HERHIBET o
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HKEx ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT EXFAiEE HEeRETER
INDEX EHiESIRB £

Aspects Description Page/Remark

i

=] Ei:pus R

A1 Emissions

A1 EEED
General Disclosure Information on: 21,32
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— MR EE BHEERIRERBHN - MKRIaBEEs - BE
MEEEZYNELFH
(@ Xk
(b) BEFHEITABERZENEBERKARGG
AR o
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions 35
data.
A1 PR A R AR R B -
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 35
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.
A1.2 B (BE1) ke REE (BE2))R=EREBEMRE
E o
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 35
A1.3 MEENBEERENEERTE -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 35
A1.4 ELNBEEREMRERTE -
A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken 20, 33-34
to achieve them.
A1.5 B PRET M HE R E B IR R AE RE & B R AT EREEY
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 20, 34

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A1.6 e IR A E MBS EREYNIA - REAET LA
R B AR M SR L B ARFTERERE PR
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Aspects

[Bm

A2 Use of Resources
A2 EFREH

General Disclosure

— BB
A2.1

A2.1

A2.2
A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

A2.5

A2.5

Description
3t

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BREER  KEREMRME)WEEK

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by time in
total and intensity.

BRHESIDNEEN SEREREEERT

o

it

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BEKEREE °

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

HALPRET M REIRE AR e B IR R RERE L B IR
BREXH) 28R o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

Rt SKEGE KR LR BT AEERIERE - ARMETZ
B RKM R B IR R ARED|E L B IR EREREY T B -

Total packaging material used for finished products
and per unit produced.

R BAABEMHNEE N EBEESBUHLE -

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ASRERRKARER

General Disclosure

—AR R
A3.1

A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.

BEBETAHRERAREREREATENBR °

Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

HIM X BB IRE R RARE RN BN E R ELTT
& o

Page/Remark
BRBE

35

35

20, 33

There were no issues in sourcing
water fit for purpose.

SKEVERKIRS A HRE -
20, 33

The use of packaging materials is
irrelevant to the Group’s
operating businesses.

BEM R A ERAE B H K
53

34

34
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Aspects

Bm

A4 Climate Change
A4 RRE L

General Disclosure

—RINEE

A4.1

A4
B1 Employment

B1{EE

General Disclosure

—RINEE

B1.1

B1.1

Description
3t

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.

Bl S R B AR K
RIEFEEEOBOR -

AREEHBITAELFENEAR

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
HE R RATRE@HEITAEETENERRIZIEH
EE - KEHTTH -

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

AN RE  BREREA  TIERSE - R F

e - 2ot  REGRUAREMSFBREN

(@ BoR: &

b) BFHBEITABE
&t

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

RIER - EBEEDR - FielR MR E 5
g& o

2B IR R BRI

HES®
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Page/Remark
R R

This issue is not material based
on the results of stakeholder
engagement. The Group will
continue to adjust the
management approach and
information disclosure approach
in accordance with the materiality

principle.
REBMNREAESENER - UL
MBI TEE - NEEKERR

BEEEMRAAREE ARG
BWEIE -

21,27-28
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Aspects

[Bm

B1.2

B1.2

B2 Health and Safety
B2@EEHZE

General Disclosure

—RIE

B2.1

B2.1

B2.2
B2.2

B2.3

B2.3

Description
it

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.
RIER - FRAR Rt EE DHEERKL X -

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BRRHEZETERERREREREBENEE

HJ :

(@ BR: &

(b) BTFTHETABEAZENHBEZLROIN
&H

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred

in each of the past three years including the

reporting year.

BE=ZF (BRABREFE)FFRAITHOAZEK

b o

Lost days due to work injury.

HIBEARTIERE -

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

R P ER MV B R R R R 2181 - AREREARITR
ERE -

Page/Remark
BRBE

36

22, 26-27

37

37

26-27

BIMEBERARDA 2021 FERE
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Aspects

Bm

Description
Hut

B3 Development and Training

B3 & & R iZH
General Disclosure

—RIEE

B3.1

B3.1
B3.2

B3.2
B4 Labour Standards

B4 % T#H|
General Disclosure

—RIE

B4.1

B4.1
B4.2

B4.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.
BERARAEEBITIIERENANB R EENEE -
MIFFNEE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category.

BRI REEERIBONZIREB AL

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.
RUERIREERRED - BRESTAZIN TR
g& o

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEAP IEZE T asa 45 TH) -

(@ BOK: &

(b) BTHETABEAZENRBEIERAED -

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

R R EfIRE AR EE T RAKIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

i R RE RIS B BB ERER A P8
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Page/Remark
BERBE

37

37

22,28

28

The Group did not encounter
such practices during the
Reporting Period.
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Aspects

Description

B g

B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 it EHE EE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks

of the supply chain.

— R ERMHEENRE R ERBREOBER o

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.1 i@ e D HEEEE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.2 HEEEREEENED - EERITABERHH
JEEEE - ARABRAIT REE A -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B5.3 R AR EPIE EEPRIE Rt 2 RBRMNED - AR
HEARITRERTE -

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.4 LA SRR R R B (2 2 IR IR EE o AR TS 018

7l ARAMBEATRER X -

Page/Remark
BRBE

31-32

37

31-32

31-32

This issue is not material based
on the results of stakeholder
engagement. The Group will
continue to adjust the
management approach and
information disclosure approach
in accordance with the materiality
principle.
RBNRABAE2ENER - UL
BB TEE - NEEBERIR
BEEMRAAERERFERE
BRERE -
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Aspects

Bm

Description
Hut

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 EmEE
General Disclosure

—RRIE

B6.1

B6.1

B6.2

B6.2
B6.3

B6.3
B6.4

B6.4
B6.5

B6.5

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

AEFREERNREHRERRS  ES  BRE
B E U RIBRODED -

(@ BoR: &

(b) BTHETABBEAZENHEMEIZNARIIN
Bkt e

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENEEXREMRBE+F AL 2 iR FE R mAER K
HA DL °

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BN EMNMRGOIRFEHENALELE X

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

fit ER A S R B AN BE R B RV E DI -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

i E BRERF MEmEWIEF °

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

HUE B & ERHRIE RALBER - ARMBERTRE
BIE -
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Page/Remark
R R

23, 30-31

The issue is irrelevant to the
Group’s operating businesses.
ZEEREERESREER -

31

31

The Group was not involved in
any recall procedures.

AREBI AW MA@ WARFF o
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Aspects

[Bm

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 RE’5
General Disclosure

—fRIEE

B7.1

B7.1

B7.2

B7.2

B7.3

B7.3

Description
3t

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRAD ILBEEE - $IR - BEFROEEM

(@ BXR: X

(b) ETHEITABERZENEER LA
EHL o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

R &R T

FRARRMOEE RAFAER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

APy S b R R IRAR T - U RAEBMIT RER A
E e

Description of anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.
HilmMEERE TRENRESE -

B8 Community Investment

BSHE®RE

General Disclosure

— IR

B8.1
B8.1

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

AR SRNB - BT REEFELEOR
Z - TRREETEREDHE L BB -

Focus areas of contribution.

BT EREE -

Aﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%

Page/Remark
R

23, 30

30

30

This issue is not material based
on the results of stakeholder
engagement. The Group will
continue to adjust the
management approach and
information disclosure approach
in accordance with the materiality
principle.

RIFN S AEAAE 2 ENER - Ut
BRI ITEE - AEEGEEIR
BEZEMRAAERERFERE
BRERE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER INFORMATION

TREAREMESR

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and
quality of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standards of corporate governance
which is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the
interests of the shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code' in force from time to time (“CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. During the Year, the Group’s corporate governance
practices are in compliance with the CG Code except for the deviation
from CG Code provision A.2.1. CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that
the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheong Ka
Wo (“Mr. Cheong”) is currently the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Cheong has been assuming
the responsibilities in the overall management and supervision of the
daily operations of the Group since the establishment of Kento
Engineering Co. Ltd. (“Kento Engineering”) (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group) in January 2011, the Board believes that it is in
the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Cheong taking up both roles
for effective management and operations. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from such code provision is appropriate.
Notwithstanding such deviation, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group’s operations and
sufficient checks and balances are in place.

Save for the above, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Year and up to the date of this report.

! A new CG Code came into effect on 1 January 2022 and the requirements
under the new CG Code apply to corporate governance reports for financial
year commencing on or after 1 January 2022. As the Corporate Governance
Report contained in this report is for the year ended 31 December 2021, the CG
Code described in this report is the CG Code in effect during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

rEEAREMER

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code for the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, in considering the
declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements
and future business growth and take into account the following factors
of the Group:

a. the Group’s results of operations;

b. cash flows and financial conditions;

c.  operating and capital requirements;

d.  statutory and regulatory restrictions;

e. future prospects (if any); and

f. any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

The Board has discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, subject to the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and the applicable laws
and regulations. The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and

necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period.

ESETHESRRS

ARRABCRA AR RIP SR+ el Em T
ANEFETEFRZNFRESTR([RESF
RIDEREBSESETESRINTRT
Al- EAEBEEFLBTERR  ARF
HR 2REENAFE-—BHETERETH
PR AR TEIRZE

IR EBE

RBEGXREARTH  EFTSCHRMABMEEE
(TREBE] - REREHE  £ZEEIK
BER EFERERTTRESHEEHE AR T
H2EESFTREAREBIER  WEET
IEEASENEE

a. AKENEEXRE:

b. RRENMUBIR

c. EENBEAREN:

d. EENMEERMH

e. AREFRME): K

f. EFERAREEZEMEMEE-
EALRASERAR((ASERMAR ) M
BEREREERZBRRT  EFSARIBRA
NARRERRSE - EFS B IR RE
KR YARNERREENVER - BRT
EHME-REBHBERAER BTk %

EER BB » BEAMRAE #5 & B BfER
MEMSESRIKE -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim
results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group.
In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in
this report.

The Board currently consists of five Directors including two executive
Directors and three independent non- executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the
Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and
experience for effective leadership. The biographical information of the
Directors is set out on pages 64 to 68 under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contributions
to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development

and provided to the Company a record of trainings they received for the
Year.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is
summarised below:

Name of Directors

T AR EEESFEEXNEAEIIE
8 -

Attending
seminars/reading
materials
relevant to the
director’s duties
HE
BFRESHEN
mae RENR

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) ReEM (L EHFEEHNTE) v
Leong Kam Leng P v
Chan Ming Kit PREAGE 4
Law Lap Tak = v/
Lee Sze Ming B v
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERITHER
Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities ~ 2%EATR|SFANENE A1 IERTE  £/F

between the chairman and the chief executive officer to be segregated.

Mr. Cheong is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Cheong has been assuming the
responsibilities in the overall management and supervision of the daily
operations of the Group since the establishment of Kento Engineering
in January 2011, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Cheong taking up both roles for effective
management and operations. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
deviation from such code provision is appropriate. Code provision A.2.7
of the CG Code requires that the Chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without the
other executive Directors present. During the Year and up to the date of
this report, Mr. Cheong held two meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of the other executive
Director.

RITBRBENBERATRD -

RAEERBARNREERITHABE - ENR
SHEBAERBLIRN2011FE1 ARTE—HE
EAEENEREEREERARELY EF
CRE - ARAERIMEACAETER
EEREEER WHEALAEENKERN
me Al EERBREZTUEBRE
2B EERTAISTAHEXEA2.TIER
T EREEEMRTESHENBRTE
FELVEBYNTEET —BETEH R
KREERAEEAREEH  AHMNTES
WHELFER  RALETEBIIENTESR

TTRMREE °
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association.
Further details of the term of appointment of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report
— Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters Of Appointment” of this
report.

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
legal, accounting and finance. With their experience gained from various
sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of
the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-
executive Director gave a confirmation of his independence to the
Company, and the Company considered each of them is independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies
of the Group, setting objectives and business development plans,
assuming responsibility of corporate governance and monitoring the
performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board and reporting on the Group’s operations to the Board on a
regular basis to ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s
senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional
advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their
duties at the Group’s expense upon their request. All the Directors have
been provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and
financial position to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BYFAITES
BT E SR EENEL - ARE
AR BABEREAE ST FRERT—
R BAFNTEFEAME —SHBERR
AHE [EFERE - EFRFANREL
) — -

—HRBUINTESTREMAL BB E
e ReRMBENBITREEER R
ENSNSREITEMERNLER  HIER
HARIHUBRETESZTSNHST LB
B RBBUIPTESAARBIERER
M MARRRABFEESBRE LTRA
F3I1EH ABILAL -

EFENEERENREE
EFRTERRANTARER
AEREBERIE ARCEEAREE
BRERERR -

[::: avan
REERRE -

EAARNTEFHEET  ETEEAEH
TEFRHEL RN R B LA LB
WERREEATERRE  RREFER
HAGAB AT -

2REBEAMER RBIIMF AR EEN SR
EEEBNEERETHE - HEAESREELH
HERKESBYEXERPEBTRE &
FAHAREEAE 2RESFHRIEHASHE
BASHEELRMBRRER  UEEEE
ERLEEERETRE



OO0

Corporate Governance and Other Information

rEEAREMER

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the
Board and is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all
aspects of its business. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration against a range of objective criteria, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Company
will also take into consideration its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”). The Nomination Committee will make recommendations
to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving diversity of the
Board and monitor the progress on achieving the objectives.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be
discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and accompanying papers
shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board meeting to
ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the
documents.

The Board held 5 meetings and one annual general meeting during the
Year. The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings
and annual general meeting held during the Year is set out below:

@]e)

e

EX g
ESEEAEBFANEFTEHMRTEIAR
Exggd MAEFSVTERMNBAA
REZBTANELTORX2Z2BEE &
PREFARSHFERNREEZSNER
HETRWROEE - BREMNEXTERE
FRERAMIMEL ZRERES - U
REFHREHEENEBXT -

b=111g

=
E23

e

REAFE BFGHBITTEREHER K
BREBFREG - TREIIZTEFHENRERF
ERAZEFEEZLRRBEFARAGH
8 :

Attendance/Number of
meeting held

HE " BITERRE

Annual

Board general

meetings meeting

Name of Directors EEEER RREFKE

Executive Directors HITES

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) Re=M(EEFEEHNTE) 5/5 11

Leong Kam Leng B 5/5 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Chan Ming Kit PR $2 5% 5/5 1M

Law Lap Tak BinGE 5/5 1/1

Lee Sze Ming RIS 5/5 11

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection by the Directors.
Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of relevant actions against its Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 21 August 2020 which currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lee Sze Ming (as
chairlady), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Mr. Law Lap Tak. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but
are not limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and
diversity (including the skills, knowledge, educational background,
experience and diversity) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board in the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; and (c) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In considering the composition of the Board, the Board diversity will
been considered from a number of perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director in accordance
with the Board Diversity Policy. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year to review
the structure, composition, size and diversity of the Board and make
relevant recommendation to the Board, which included the re-election
of retiring Directors.

Name of Members

Lee Sze Ming (Chairlady) RIS (FE)
Chan Ming Kit PR g4
Law Lap Tak ENE

@]e)

RAFE REZBGRTT1IAEE &
LEENETENRE  EX RRERZT
b YREESFEHABEEES  Ehe
REERIES -

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HiE BT
SRRE

11
11
11

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference on 21 August 2020 (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ming Kit (as chairman), Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee
Sze Ming. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the model described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code in its terms of reference.

The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all of Directors and senior
management personnel and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the policy on such remuneration;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and approving management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year to
discuss and consider the remuneration policy of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group.

Name of Members

Chan Ming Kit (Chairman) BRE®GE (F /)
Law Lap Tak R aNTE
Lee Sze Ming FEIB

RAFE  HHEESRTTIREHE &
timkEEASBEE SR EE BN
BHIERR

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HE BT
BRRY

3/3
3/3
3/3

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend
on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee taking into account
their skills and knowledge, their job responsibilities and level of their
involvement in the Group’s affairs, the performance of the Group and
the prevailing market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration for the Year falls within the
following bands:

ENEENSREEENHEARFRES
BREEBHENAOER(NE)  hHE
EZERSEFMEEGNES XA RKRE
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=R EEE K H A
REEBREREOFMN TIATHE :

Number of

individuals

Nil to MOP1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 2 F9 7T 1
MOP1,000,001 to MOP2,000,000 1,000,001 382 F9 T £ 2,000,000 2 F9 7T 3
MOP2,000,001 and above 2,000,001 8PFIT M A+ 1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference on 21 August 2020 and currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Lap Tak (as
chairman), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze Ming. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring
integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
and (c) reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditors regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to

o review the independence and the works done by the auditor; and

° review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure,
internal control and risk management system, effectiveness of the
internal audit function and procedures and appointment of
external auditor.
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Name of Members

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HE BT
BRRY

Law Lap Tak (Chairman) BINESLE () 3/3
Lee Se Ming PR EE 4L A 3/3
Chan Ming Kit ZRBZE 3/3
The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal ZE#ZZE @SB AEENIREGRMEIENR
control systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same NI IZH| X4 - BNMAERZEZGHEesE
will be carried out annually. HEITRES ©
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS £ E R AE

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee
the Company’s orientation program for new Director, to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the above mentioned
corporate governance functions.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditors are set out below:
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TEERBEAEREENARAITEES
mﬁ&%&%;ﬁl%%?ﬁ%E/D‘J’W&E{ﬁfﬁ
BREEHRT  BEEARRRHIESTRITH
B A iEFJ”a%’Fi ERREEEENaRER
BBl RFEEETER BB 2HNE
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B =

RAFE - BB A R RZEA & B &
ESR N

Fee paid/

payable

B ENER

MOP’000

FHEFI T

Audit services FENZIRTE 2,063

Non-audit services* IEEZ R 296

Total: Bzt - 2,359
* The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services. * IEBIZRE £ BB ERIEIRTE -
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chan Yat Lui as its Company
Secretary. Mr. Chan Yat Lui has confirmed that for the Year, he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The
biography of Mr. Chan Yat Lui is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company is held each year and at the place as
may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, is called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a
written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 1909-13, 19th Floor, Tai Yau
Building, 181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of the
Requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene a physical meeting, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong Rooms 1909-13, 19th Floor, Tai Yau Building,
181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong by post or by email to
ylchan@kento.com.mo.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person other than
a Director for election as a Director, the shareholder must deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 1909-13, 19th Floor, Tai Yau
Building, 181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the person
proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the shareholder concerned (other than the person to be proposed).
The Notice must also be accompanied by a letter of consent (the
“Letter”) signed by the person proposed to be elected on his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgment of the Notice and the Letter will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice by the Company of
the general meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Nomination Committee and the Board
to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting proposing such person to be elected as a Director.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the Chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice of the AGM will be
voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim reports to all shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on
the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other announcements
and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing

disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meetings of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Board
has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
internal control systems of the Group are structured to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s goals, to safeguard the Group’s assets and
to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records and
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems, and management
has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee (and the Board) on
the effectiveness of these systems for the Year. A review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted by the Board at least annually.
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Risk management

The Company has already reviewed its risk management framework
and processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from
this exercise that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In
particular, the Company has developed, approved and implemented a
risk management system, which is defined and supported by its
endorsed risk management policy. The system comprises the following
phases:

o Identification: 1dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Analysis: Analyze the existing control, likelihood and consequence
of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business
aspects such as revenue management, expenditure management,
human resources and payroll, cash and treasury management, financial
reporting, compliance and information technology. The internal control
measures are supervised by management team including executive
Directors. The management team is responsible to identify risks and
internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of the
Group from time to time and implementing additional control measures.
Once any internal control deficiency was identified, the management
would take immediate steps to notify the Audit Committee the findings
and implement relevant internal control measures with assistance of any
independent consulting firm as appropriate. Results of the internal
assessments, internal surveys and routine inspections would be
reported to the Audit Committee of the Board, which is responsible to
review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal controls system of the Group.
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Internal audit function

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate measures to
perform the internal control review at different aspects of the Group.

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material controls
such as financial, operational and compliance controls for the Year. In
addition, the Board has appointed an internal control review consultant
to review the internal control systems of the Group on an on-going
basis. For the Year, the review covered key processes of project
tendering, payment processing and administration, payroll and legal
and compliance of the Group. Such review shall be conducted annually.
The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company for the Year were effective and adequate.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information with the
aim to ensure the insiders are abided by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
passed on 21 August 2020, the Articles of Association was adopted.
During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional documents
of the Company.

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo, aged 42, was appointed as a Director in October
2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17 April 2020.
Mr. Cheong is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
and a director of all of the Company’s subsidiaries. He is responsible for
the overall management and supervision of the daily operations of the
Group. Mr. Cheong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP3,000,000 per
annum.

Mr. Cheong has over 20 years of experience in the electrical engineering
industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering in January 2011, Mr.
Cheong worked as an electrical engineer in various construction
contractors in Macau, where he commenced his career in the electrical
and engineering industry, including his role as an engineer at CAA City
Planning & Engineering Consultants Ltd. (#7138 iR &2 TR AR A
B]), a company engaged primarily in urban planning, transportation planning,
urban renewal studies and cultural heritage studies from October 2001
to January 2003, where he was responsible for E&M system designs.
From January 2003 to June 2004, Mr. Cheong was an electrical
engineer of Consolidated Engineering Co., Ltd. (Z[E TI2HER A7), a
company experienced in electrical and mechanical engineering projects
involving installation and maintenance of air conditioning systems and
electrical engineering works, where he was responsible for management of
electrical and ELV system engineering works. He was also a technician of
Institute for Tourism Studies (RFIMk#2Z ), a public education institute
under the Macau government from July 2004 during which he was
responsible for the management of engineering works. Mr. Cheong then
resumed his role at Consolidated Engineering Co., Ltd. as an electrical
engineer from May 2006 to December 2009, where he was then
responsible for management of electrical and ELV system engineering
works. From January to December 2010, he served as an electrical
engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co., Ltd. (¥132+4 LI2H R 2 7)), a company
primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical engineering projects
where he was responsible for the management of electrical and ELV
system engineering works.

Mr. Cheong obtained his bachelor degree in electromechanical

engineering from the University of Macau (Universidade de Macau) in
July 2001.
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Mr. Leong Kam Leng, aged 50, was appointed as a Director in
October 2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17
April 2020. Mr. Leong is also a director of all of the Company’s
subsidiaries. He is responsible for the strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Leong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP600,000 per annum.

Mr. Leong has over 30 years of experience in the electrical engineering
and maintenance industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering in
January 2011, Mr. Leong worked as a manager in Decoracao E
Engenharia Decol, Limitada (:E£F& = A& &8 R 2 7]) in Macau, a company
engaged in the sale and distribution of air conditioners, from January
1991 to December 2010, where he was responsible for on-site
management and operations. Mr. Leong has also accumulated more
than 20 years of management and operational experiences in the E&M
engineering services industry under several business ventures in Macau
which he has founded.

Mr. Leong obtained a diploma on electromechanical techniques of
industrial maintenance secondary technical — professional education
(curso de técnicas de electromecéanica de manutencgéo industrial do
ensino secundario complementar Técnico — profissional) from the
Luso-Chinese School of Technical Professional (Escola Luso — Chinesa
Técnico — Profissional) in June 2007. Mr. Leong obtained a
professional diploma in interior design from the University of Macau in
July 2008 and a certificate in construction safety supervisor
(Encarregado de seguranga na construgéo civil) from the University of
Macau in February 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Lap Tak, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$132,000 per annum. Mr. Law held various positions
in an international accounting firm from July 1992 to October 1999
where he last served as a manager, responsible for audit planning and
control as well as supervision of audit staff. He joined China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited (previously named Yixing Xinwei Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
769) which is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of rare
earth and refractory products, as financial controller and company
secretary since November 1999, where he supervises the overall
financial management including corporate accounting, financial
reporting and regulatory compliance of the company where he has been
familiar with relevant law and regulations of a listed company as well as
the obligations and duties imposed upon directors.

Mr. Law earned his bachelor degree in business administration in
accounting from Hong Kong Baptist University (previously known as the
Hong Kong Baptist College) in December 1992. He is currently a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(previously known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) (since
November 1996), a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (since July 2001) and a member of the Institute of Public
Accountants in Australia (since March 2013).
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Ms. Lee Sze Ming, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and she is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$132,000 per annum. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of
experience in legal profession specialising in employees’ compensation,
personal injuries, property damage and conveyancing. Ms. Lee joined
Messrs. Lau Chan & Ko, a law firm in Hong Kong specialising in
property and conveyancing from August 2000 to September 2006
where she last served as a partner being responsible for handling
property related transactions, employees’ compensations and personal
injuries claims. She was also a partner of Messrs. Fongs (previously
known as Messrs. Fong Chan & Lee), a law firm in Hong Kong
specialising in conveyancing from September 2006 to February 2009
where she was responsible for handling property related transactions,
employees’ compensations and personal injuries claims. Ms. Lee is
currently a partner of Messrs. Rita Law & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong,
having joined the firm in March 2009 where she is responsible for
overseeing the litigation department, dealing with high value personal
injuries and employees’ compensation cases and providing legal advice
to the general public, and has developed an understanding of the legal
framework and areas of concerns of the construction industry.

Ms. Lee obtained her bachelor of laws and postgraduate certificate in
laws from The University of Hong Kong in December 1994 and
September 1995, respectively. Since December 1997 she was admitted
as a solicitor in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chan Ming Kit, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$132,000 per annum. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, corporate finance and business valuation.
Starting from January 1993, Mr. Chan took on various roles at different
professional accounting firms, including as senior manager at various
offices in Hong Kong and the PRC of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst & Young where he was responsible
for auditing works and financial services for clients. From October 2006,
Mr. Chan took his role as director of business and financial valuations
department at Sallmanns, a corporate valuation and consultancy firm
where he was responsible for development of business valuation
services. He later assumed the position as director of Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (previously known as
Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited) in February 2008, upon the
merger of Sallmanns with Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, and was
responsible for the development of business valuation services and has
experience in providing valuation and consultancy advices to clients
including development consultancy, feasibility studies, market studies,
cost analysis and business valuations for various industries, including
the E&M industry, which enables him to understand and evaluate the
various factors, including costs, timeframe, materials, design and
methods, that are relevant to the E&M industry. Mr. Chan is now serving
as regional director of Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, being part of Jones Lang LaSalle, a Fortune 500
company and a leading professional services firm specialising in real
estate and investment management.

Mr. Chan is currently a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since December 2010 and a fellow
member of CPA Australia since May 2009. He was also elected as a
professional member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and
elected as a fellow member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
in February 2014 and July 2016, respectively.

Mr. Chan gained his bachelor of commerce from the University of
Melbourne in Australia in December 1992.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang Hong Lun, aged 39, is the head of heating, ventilation and
air-conditioning (“HVAC”) department of the Company since March
2012 and is primarily responsible for management of HVAC systems
works. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chang Hong Lun was an air
condition engineer at an experienced electrical and mechanical
engineering company, Consolidated Engineering Co. Ltd. (& T2 G
7~xa]), from October 2006 to December 2009, where he was responsible
for management of air-conditioning system. From January 2010 to
October 2011, Mr. Chang Hong Lun also served as an air condition
engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co. Ltd. (¥15# L1245 R /A 7)), a company
primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical engineering projects where
he was responsible for management of air-conditioning system. Mr.
Chang Hong Lun obtained his bachelor’s degree in electrical and
electronic engineering from the University of Macau (Universidade de
Macau) in October 2006. Mr. Chang Hong Lun has become a registered
professional engineer (“RPE”) in Macau since 2009.

Mr. Tai Hoi Tun, aged 40, is the head of electrical department of the
Company since December 2011 and is primarily responsible for
management of LV systems works and ELV systems works. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Tai was a mechanical engineer at Shun Heng
Construction Company Ltd. (1 EEF R A F]), a company mainly involve
in civil construction where he was responsible for management of sub-
contractors from May 2005 to August 2007. From September 2007 to
December 2009, Mr. Tai was an assistant engineer in an electrical and
mechanical engineering company, Consolidated Engineering Co. Ltd. (5
P& T2 HBRE A 7)), where he was responsible for management of electrical
works. From January 2010 to December 2011, Mr. Tai also served as an
E&M engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co. Ltd. (i L2 AR A F), a
company primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical engineering
projects where he was responsible for management of E&M works. Mr.
Tai obtained his bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering and
automation from the South China University of Technology in July 2004.
Mr. Tai has become a RPE in Macau since 2008.
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Ms. Wong, Joyce Kit Sin, aged 39, was appointed as the Group
finance controller on 25 November 2019 and is responsible for finance
management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wong held
various positions since April 2006 at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, a
professional accounting firm, where she left as a senior auditor in May
2008. From May 2008 to June 2011, Ms. Wong was an internal auditor
of Galaxy Casino, S. A. () IR 435510 B R A F]), a subsidiary owned
as to 90% by Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 27),
where her job duties include plan and budget audit assignments and
developing audit programs. Ms. Wong then joined Orient Town Project
Management Ltd. (Z£ 818 B & 12 F [R 2 7]), a property development
company from July 2010 to May 2011 as assistance finance manager,
where she was responsible for treasury management, preparation of
financial reports and monitoring accounting control. She was a finance
manager at Ponte 16 Group, a hotel-casino resort held as to 51% by
SJM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880) and as to 49% by Success
Universe Group Limited (& 12 IR 3k B R 2 7]) (stock code: 487), from
June 2011 to October 2015, where she was responsible for preparation
of financial statements and analysis report for hotel operations. From
October 2015 to September 2018, Ms. Wong was the finance manager
of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (F7 B /& SN2 & B R 2 7))
(stock code: 688), where she was responsible for overseeing all finance
matters relating to property development projects and hotel business in
Macau of the company. From December 2018 to August 2019, she
served various positions with her last position as assistant financial
controller of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (gp j/l|H & F &
[% % FR /A 7)) (stock code: 711), where she was responsible for formulating
financial models and tax planning for the new projects of the company.
Ms. Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree in business administration in
accounting from the University of Hawai’i at Manoa in August 2005. She
was admitted as a member of the CPA Australia in June 2016.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yat Lui (BR)%%), aged 38, was appointed as the company
secretary on 17 April 2020 and is responsible for company secretarial
matters of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan served
various positions with his last position being audit supervisor at Yiu Cho
Yan Certified Public Accountant from June 2005 to May 2011. From
June 2011 to November 2014, Mr. Chan was a senior accountant in the
corporate recovery department in KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Certified Public
Accountants and was subsequently promoted to manager in the same
firm. From January 2015 to December 2015, he returned to Yiu Cho Yan
Certified Public Accountant serving as an audit manager. He served as
the financial controller and company secretary of Super Strong Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 8262) from January 2016, and resigned from the
position of company secretary and financial controller on 26 September
2017 and on 13 October 2017, respectively. He was also a company
secretary of Shanghai Realway Capital Assets Management Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 1835), from November 2018 to October 2019.
Since November 2019, Mr. Chan has been appointed as a director of
Frank Forensic and Corporate Recovery Limited, a company primarily
engaged in providing financial investigations, forensic accounting,
expert witness and litigation support, corporate rescue and recovery,
and internal compliance advisory services where he is responsible for
leading company liquidations, personal bankruptcy cases, forensic
investigations, receiverships and compliance advisory engagements.
Mr. Chan has been a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 2010, and is currently a
certified tax adviser (non-practising) of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan obtained an associate degree in business
administration in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2005.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY’S LISTING

The aggregate net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting Listing
expenses borne by the Company) amounted to approximately HK$51.6
million (equivalent to approximately MOP53.1 million). The proposed
application of net proceeds as stated in the Prospectus has been
adjusted according to the principles and proposed percentage of
utilisation as specified in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus. The use of proceeds up to 31 December
2021 is included in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 14 to 15.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering services works in
Macau.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development, as well as a discussion on
the Group’s performance during the Year are provided in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s operations, many of
which are beyond the Group’s control, including but not limited to those
relating to its business and the industry. Some of the major risks facing
the Group include the following:

° the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each
project, which in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to
be involved

o the Company requires various registrations, licenses and
certifications to operate the Group’s business in Macau

° personal injuries, property damages or fatal accidents may occur
at work sites

° any changes in environmental requirements may increase the
Group’s compliance costs

° the Group operates in a competitive E&M services industry

Detailed discussion of the risk factors is set out in the section headed
“Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Environment, Social and Governance Report of the Company for
the Year contained the information required under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules is set out on pages 19 to 45 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operation of the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets
of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to employees and emphasis the personal development of
its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers,
subcontractors and suppliers. The Group aims to continue providing
quality services to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy
with its subcontractors and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 96.

FINAL AND SPECIAL DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Board has recommended the
Final Dividend of HK2.03 cents (2020: Nil) per Share for the year ended
31 December 2021 to the Shareholders.

In light of the retained earnings of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
without prejudice to the healthy and sustained development of the
Company, in order to offer a better return for the Shareholders, the
Board has recommended the Special Dividend of HK3.97 cents per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2021 to the Shareholders in
addition to the Final Dividend. The Board considers that the payment of
the Special Dividend will not have material impact to the Group’s
financial position.

The payment of the Final Dividend and the Special Dividend is subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM. Upon the approval by the
Shareholders, the Final Dividend and the Special Dividend are expected
to be paid on or around Friday, 24 June 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation (2020:
Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR THE AGM AND THE FINAL DIVIDEND
AND THE SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 27 May 2022. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 24 May 2022
to Friday, 27 May 2022 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of the Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2022.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the AGM, the Final
Dividend and the Special Dividend will be payable to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company as at
the close of business on Tuesday, 7 June 2022. For the purpose of
determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the Final Dividend
and the Special Dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 2 June 2022 to Tuesday, 7 June 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the Shares will be
registered. In order for the Shareholders to qualify for the proposed
Final Dividend and the Special Dividend, all properly completed share
transfer forms together with the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 1 June 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BEBR
WA AR E LR TR E R
(20204 : f&) ©

BREBFAEURKARE
IREEEBEER

S
&
afl

A EAFE K& T80 2022F5 A27 B (£
H)BRIT AETHERRAFTF RS RES L
"R ZER - NAFIERR2022F5 A24H (£
Hi— )& 20225 A27 BH(EHR) 2 HE (8
FEEMA)EEHERNBFELFE - A
FEERHEREBFReREEe LRE
EEN2022E5 A23 A (E 8 —) NF M
= toRBAEE I ERABARERR
KARBBBRNDBFELSEEEBFER
BRAR - U AEESFANERI183HE
ML B5418 - AHEEES -

FRRERREBEFT RS EHfEER - RERE
KRR B AR IT T2 20226 A7 H (24
TORREERZI AR BRELMAOE -
BETREERRERELEINIRENSE
% RAREH2022FE6 A2 (28M) &
20226 A7H(EHD) v A (BIEEREM
B)EEHER M BE SR FE - SRR
HEEREBRERRBERBREFRRE - 1
ER2022F6 A1H(EH =) THFWUEE =1
DRI BEZ R G B R I&ER A AR
ZERRANBBERMDBEEL D R PIEE
S5ELBERAT MILATBERAER
1835 A MM .0 5418 - AEED -

Y - BB KRR

AEENME - BERREBRAFENE
FHBEHNGA MR 14

BIIHEEZERARAR 2021 FERSE

75



76

Directors’ Report

EERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders amounted to approximately MOP82.1
million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the Year are set
out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when this Directors’ Report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 176 of this report.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

OO0

o] 1 7kt

7R2021F12 A31 8 » AR A A it 5K F I
B EN A2 BERMT -

SN

REFRBRAZEFBHRGE T BHREN
5F22 -

BrlEER

HEERARNFASEE (RN R MK
FTER RDARER ) AR L B\ TE AR R BR
L PIRR AR R B EFRNELEEENGK
7o

BBERER

SRR RIPTAN - BRI B AR5 R ) TS
ERABBER

BE HEREEARFL
M 78 5

REE > KRR HETRME QR ERE
g HESBELOTRARAR FHES -

BERERX

AAFIEREEERSREREEE A
PREEHELAHBFEENEETH  BESF
LB ENERERESRREH: - AR
EENEZNBETREGEURE A RGN (FH
EANIE622F ) FAT0 MM EREEHFR
HESHEILRB ARG (HEEMF622F)
.391(1)(a) IER BT R o

SEMBHE

AEERERNAMBRFENEENEERRA
EMEHNAREEL176 A ©



OO0

Directors’ Report

EERE

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors for the Year and up to the date of this report is set
out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles of Association, any person
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment, and shall be eligible for
re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Mr. Law Lap Tak shall
retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from date of
the Listing, 11 September 2020. Either party has the right to terminate
the service agreement by giving not less than one month’s written
notice to the other party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Ming Kit, Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee Sze Ming, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2020. Either party has the right to
terminate the letter of appointment by giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of,
the Company or in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS ’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement and
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with such Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at 31 December 2021 or at any
time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any
of its subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are not subject to the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

OO0

BREM I
ARRABEWB|ZBEILIERTESRIELTR
A% 3B R E B MEAF H O FERE » AR A
R ABFATESTHEBELAL -

%%Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%

2R ) AR fa] B B A B A B A AT B
MESHEIUFEESHIEBE A RBYEER
DBV AL EADE A B B8 B AL S B RE A
RIS Mz e 2 HE -

EENRG RHEHENF
R E K=

BirA MERRMEOMBEENEE TS
AN ARQFSE AT M8 A B 2021 12
B 31 Bk AFE IR SEFETM
BRAREESMESKZESAEECE
REEZSHEREEARRIZEARS X
BEREH -

HEERBRRNEN

MAEE - NREBEEAN B AR &SR
AR AHE ] R AR R B 1K S 0 (EAAT B B 2 A
FRINEAREH -

EEEHN

RAFEAR  BEITIHFEERSIRAR
A2 R AE D FBHERMITHRAAL] -

BB E RS

A BmRM T 29 A BN S X5
TBRETRANEMAAZ [FERS | [+
BRERSINESE  XTAXER EHHRL
FUABNEERTE - AAFRESRELTR
AF AR ETAIAERRERTE °



@)

Directors’ Report

EERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT EERRORMEBRONE
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND mRRAE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the R2021F12A31H EERARAZRSIT
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying KA BRAR A KEMEE LB (TERE
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation & A B 5 571 =75 55 K& B & 156 ([ 5% % &
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Ef'ﬁﬁﬂ) EXVEL) Bk - AERER G R &R
Cap. 571 (Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the & @ HERIEEF R EIEFEXVIEET
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part &8"6 RS AR T R Bk 22 P R A SO
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are & (B#EH EIRIEE %&Hﬁ flﬂﬁlJE’JEZ%{

taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which X EFER BHEE MR SOAR) - SR
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the &% & Hi & (&1 55 352 {§ ﬁ\’iuﬂﬁﬁi {6 AT 3t
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the ZE AR SAR  HIRBIZESFRIEE
Model Code, are set out below: HRERISOAREINT ¢
Interest in Shares of the Company R QB RAD RS
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest shares (Nete 1) interest Wete 2
R fER
EEpR ERME R A @2 B E 2 L #E2)
Mr. Cheong (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
SRS A (BfaE3) RIEGLEERER
Mr. Leong (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
R (MtaE4) ZEHEAE R
Notes: Bfat

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the Company. (1) TLIREBBEATREMOENETAE -

2) Based on 500,000,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December  (2) H OPR2021F 128318 A A 7 B % 17 0

2021. 500,000,000 A% A% ©
(3 Macau E&M Group Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the  (3) B THTEEAERATHELELEHES © 17
SFO, Mr. Cheong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company EBEAELBEERD  RESEWRENZIKS
held by Macau E&M Group Limited. EEARATFENRATRM P AL R
(4)  Macau E&M Assets Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Leong. By virtue of the  (4) BIMEEERRATERELEZEHE - 1R
SFO, Mr. Leong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held EBEAELIEERD  BEEHRENRIKS
by Macau E&M Assets Limited. BEEARATFENRATRN P AL ER
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors or chief executive of the
Company were aware of, persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Name of substantial shareholder Nature of interest

EFRRRER

EEME

Macau E&M Group Limited
FIIMEEE

Beneficial owner

EREEA

Ms. Lo Chao leng (Note 3)
EAMOR 22+ (K171 3)

Interest of spouse
EiEERDS

Beneficial owner

EREEA

Macau E&M Assets Limited
BIREARE

Ms. Leong Kam In (Note 4)
et (it 4)

Interest of spouse

B (B

Mr. Tam Chi Wai (“Mr. Tam") (Note 5)

ESERE(EEE]) (HES5) ZEGEEER

Beneficial owner

ERERA

One Wesco Inc.

Ms. Law Ming Chu (Note 6)
EAKR 2+ (K17t 6)

Interest of spouse

BB
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percentage of
shareholding
interest Note2

iR

Number of
shares (Nete 1)

BOMA®EY  EHES L mE
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%

51,597,000 (L) 10.3%

51,597,000 (L) 10.3%

77,637,000 (L) 15.5%

77,637,000 (L) 15.5%

77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of substantial shareholder Nature of interest shares (Nete 1) interest Mote 2
R ER
FTERRHES EaME R EE @2 BB 2t wE2)
Mr. Tsang Yuen Wai, Samuel Interest of controlled corporation 47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
(“Mr. Tsang”) (Note 7)
@IRE A - Samuel ([ G %4 ) TR EEER
(Ktet7)
Bridge Capital Limited Beneficial owner 47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
BEREBA
Ms. Li Sau Fun (Note 8) Interest of spouse 47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
FEZ+ (K17 8) EiEER
Notes: Bfet

1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

) Based on 500,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

(©)) Ms. Lo Chao leng is the spouse of Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lo
Chao leng is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Cheong is
interested.

4) Ms. Leong Kam In is the spouse of Mr. Leong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Leong
Kam In is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Leong is
interested.

) One Wesco Inc. is wholly-owned by Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tam is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by One Wesco Inc..

()] Ms. Law Ming Chu is the spouse of Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law
Ming Chu is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tam is
interested.

7) Bridge Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Tsang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Bridge Capital Limited.

(8) Ms. Li Sau Fun is the spouse of Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Li Sau
Fun is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tsang is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any interests
or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2021.

(1) FEILIEZBALTRROFHGE
(20  FE 2021412 A 31 H 500,000,000 i & 3 17
f&tn o

@) BEUBRZLI/RLEENERS - REEZRPE
WGP B Z L IRBIERRE LA ERDN
Bin A S -

(4)  Leong Kam InZ AR5 EMIE - RIFFFH
MEFE &P - Leong Kam InZZ B ERA 2%
EHEEEEORD P EEER

(5)  One Wesco Inc. BB AL EWE - IREFES
e HAE &M - 58 5 A 45 /E 7S One Wesco Inc.
BAMRMD P AR

6) ERKZLIS/BLEENER - REEZFRPE
WGP BARZ L IRGIER B LA ERN
Bin A S -

(7)  Bridge Capital Limited A G e A2 & HH 1R
BESH RBE GG 85k 4 18 E 7 Bridge
Capital Limited £ 8 8% (5 R B o

@) FHEIZLIR/BAENER - REEZLBE
WGPl FESTLRGIER B AR ERDN
Binr A S -

B EXFrHEEEIN 0 R2021F 12 A31H -
BEREVTFANMBTMAL(RARREZEES RS
TTHABBRIN R R R R A BB H

BERBEESFMAEKRIEXVIE2RES
DEPAMA QR EENEE AR © HIRIE
BHERHEEG FE 336 EBRRRTIFEN
Btk ER SRR ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 August 2020, the Company adopted the Share Option Scheme
which became effective upon the Listing and is subject to the
requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. As of the date of
this report, no option has been granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme

(1

()

(3)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to motivate the eligible
participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group and attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-
going business relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group.

Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, any directors (including non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for such number of new shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (6) below.

The maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of
which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue on the day on which trading of the Company’s
shares commences on the Stock Exchange, and such limit
represents 50,000,000 Company’s shares, representing 10% of
the total Company’s shares in issue at the date of this report.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

OO0

BB IR HERT &

202048 A21H » AN A A FR 4 B8 A% 4 5
2 HR EMBEMARA LETRAUE T
EMRTE  BEARES B AARWER
BERET R - RERD - 176 - 8
BRI SR EL AR o

BRERT SIS

(1)

(2)

(3)

E:d)

BREAIEEAEMEFAERS A
EHAREBEELRAREDIELOER -
BREABSRNAERSEERHIKS
RARTEREAEZD - ABEER
S2EER/AEENFEMIRSERAXK
o ARESIREEEERSEELIA
Hi A EZFRERZEERSGRHE
EBRGR MRSaER2EENTR
DHEEBEHASENREZRAN -

2HE

B NBERERAR B SELMM
BRRNET A 2B FRBES  TTHRA
B SRR E  ARRHEEMHEAR
ANEMNEE(BRFHTESTREYL
FRTER)REZTS 2RI R/BHH
EHARRAREEFHERRELRE
MEZAAEAA - B HER TP
DIFEREMERA LR EBRE - A
RETXEE)RZETNTEERE
EFEeMREENHRNEE

A HBITHROBE LR

BRI T B AR A AT H A BB AR
T BT REIR M BB R FT S R A A
AR ENE LIRA ETBHBBIRARNT
BDHABREHIMEE 2 AR ARDE
TN 28R 10% » ez ERRIEE R
50,000,000 &A% 17+ (G Z R & B BiAR
DRI EITRMDABEN10% -



OO0

Directors’ Report

EERE

(4)

(S)

The maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1%
limit shall be subject to approval by the Company’s shareholders
in accordance with the requirements under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

Acceptance and exercise of options and duration of
the Share Option Scheme

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by
the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of the Listing. Subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the date of the Listing.

As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately 8 years and 4 months.

(4)

(5)

E2RENRAER
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IR AR 8 e AN R RE R E A FE A A
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TEEE TR EEFSARBBRL
;3
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(6) Subscription price for shares

Subject to adjustment under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
but shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities; (ii) the average of the official closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus under the section headed
“Statutory and general information — D. Other information — 1.
Share Option Scheme”.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Macau E&M Group Limited, Macau E&M Assets Limited, Mr. Cheong
and Mr. Leong (together, the “Covenantors”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition on 21 August 2020 in favour of the Company
(for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to time),
under which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally
undertaken to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that
none of their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group) shall, during the period that (a) the shares of the Company
remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and (b) either the Covenantors
and their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the
exercise of, not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings
of the Company and not less than 10% of the voting power from the
substantial shareholders of the Company; or (c) any of the Covenantors
or their respective close associates remains as a director of any
member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own account,
in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested,
engaged or otherwise involved in or acquire or hold (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for
profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly or indirectly be
involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking and any other new
business which the Group may undertake from time to time after the
Listing.
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The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with
the non-competition undertakings during the Year. The independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and the
confirmation provided by each of the Covenantors as part of the annual
review process. On the basis that: (i) the Company has received the
confirmations from all of them regarding the undertakings; (ii) there was
no competing business reported by them; and (iii) there was no
particular situation rendering the full compliance of the undertakings
being questionable, the independent non-executive Directors are of the
view that the undertakings have been complied with and been enforced
by the Company in accordance with the terms.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective close associates is or was
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s business) that
competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during the Year and up
to the date of this report.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligation under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this report, the Company is not
aware of any change in any of the information of the Directors required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
since the last published interim report and up to the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No other equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2021 are set
out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BORROWINGS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no outstanding loans and
borrowings or bank overdrafts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 33.8% and 84.5% of the Group’s total revenue
respectively.

During the Year, the largest subcontractor and the five largest
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 16.1% and
42.5% of the total cost of sales of the Group respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 3.1% and 11.2% of the total cost
of sales of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group enters into employment contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong Kong and Macau.
The remuneration package that is offered to employees generally
includes salary, allowance, benefit-in-kind, and fringe benefits including
medical insurance and contributions to pension funds and bonus. The
Group also operates the Share Option Scheme to incentivise its
employees, details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 82 to 84 of this report. In general, the Group
determines salaries of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority. The Group has, from time to time,
provided training to its employees on various aspects including but not
limited to project management, occupational health and safety,
environmental protection, and accounting and finance. The Group
believes that the quality and safety of its staff play a crucial role in its
operations. It emphasises the importance of health and safety with its
employees and staff members, and provides on-site training to its
workers. All its workers are required to obtain certified training on
occupational health and safety before entering the construction sites.
As the Group is a main contractor for some projects, it applies for work
permits for its non- Macau resident workers on a project-by-project
basis.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 59 (31 December 2020: 73)
employees in Macau, comprising 40 Macau residents and 19 non-
Macau residents (31 December 2020: 43 Macau residents and 30 non-
Macau residents). During the Year, the Group recorded staff costs of
MOP25.0 million (previous year: MOP26.5 million).

During the Year, the total contributions paid or payable by the Group to
the defined contribution retirement benefits schemes were charged to
the profit or loss, at rates specified in the rules of scheme. At 31
December 2021 and 2020, there were no forfeited contributions which
arose upon employees leaving the schemes.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for Year are set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments or has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the Year.

= BUR

AEBREFEMRMANERS TAEER
RIMVEREH - MEBERMMOFHGTERR
BRFE 2R BVNmARBEERR
B Ko 3 2 & R EO IS ANAE A B FEAT © BEob -
AREBRIBRERTS - UREIES - HF
EHNARELB2E84H [ METE] —
fie —MmME AREERZREENER -
BULERETEHE AKETKAESR
RESEEI - BRESRNEREERE B
FREhZE RERANGFHEPEE K&
BRR BINKERRZEHEEETREES
MEZMER - AEERER BT ®RHR2
BRZENEEN WM ITARHESBE
A o FEEARETIHR - FIAE TALEER
BEREILERER) - ARAKERE
THEMIARE  AEERBAREERIF
BFIERTABRRE TEFAE °

R2021F12 A31H » REEERFIB594
(202012 831 H : 73%)EE - B1540%
BFER&19% IERFIE K (2020F 12 A
31H :43&ZBRPFIERKIOAIERMAER) °
RAEE  KREBHEBTKAA25.00 88
FI9(F—4Z : 26.5 BERFITT) o

RAFEE - NEERREHEFEREFFE
AT SR R AR TR IR AT B BIFTETRA Y
tb &R g8 5% - 2021 4 & 20204F 12 A
318 - BiEEE SR ZET 8l E A 2 i

f
NI

EEME

ERZEEMERNAFENFIBTENG A MK
AW EE10 ©

MEEENRLAFABAREAFENHE -

BIIHEEZERARAR 2021 FERSE

87



88

Directors’ Report

EERE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date
of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 21 August 2020 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to,
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half- year report
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Lap Tak (as chairman), Mr. Chan
Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze Ming. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

AUDITORS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 11
September 2020 and there has been no change in auditor since then.
The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company for the subsequent year
is to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

Macau E&M Holding Limited
Cheong Ka Wo

Chairman

Macau, 25 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MACAU E&M HOLDING LIMITED
BUIMEBERERAA
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macau E&M
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

BRETER

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BRIESHIHNKE

We identified the revenue recognition of electrical and
mechanical engineering works as a key audit matter due
to significant management judgements and estimation
are required in the determination of the total outcome of
the contracting service contracts as well as the progress
towards complete satisfaction of contracting service.
HREREREETABREEONBERIABRRE 2
T EERELERHE LA - AR PISERRET
RWEBR RERETEE -

The Group provides services for electrical and
mechanical engineering works. The Group has
recognised revenue from electrical and mechanical
engineering works of MOP180,071,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 as disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EXERHBRETZRG - EEECHEIHE20215F
12 431 B IEFEMKE T2 W /180,071,00032 T -
HIFEN R B MRMIFES -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBEEET T RUOMEHN

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
construction contracts included:

BRI RAOERARNRITERREF R

° Obtaining an understanding of the relevant key
controls over recognition of revenue from
construction contracts;

o THREMAIRESHWRNEMEERIEE

° Assessing the Group’s revenue recognition practices
to determine if they are in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards;

o FHE EEENWREERED
SRR

NEBEREN AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRETER

As set out in notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognises contract revenue of
electrical and mechanical engineering works according
to the management’s judgements and estimation of the
total outcome of the contracting service contracts as
well as the progress towards complete satisfaction of
contracting service which is measured based on the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
BRI MRMTAREME X EEEREEREY
EB R AN EERIABRE 2 T TERRIELEH
MR A RRAREIRGONE  HhxTEER &%
ERmEROBEMNTEHNS ISR AETEREBEOSE
B4R AL & ©

FRRETEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEET T RUOMEHN

On a sample basis,

R R AR -

° Agreeing projects contract sum to signed contracts
and variation orders;
e HERIWNANMERRSHTEESNTRE

o Assessing the reasonableness of the estimates used
by the management in arriving at the total budget
cost, agreed the estimates to supporting documents
and performing review of completed projects;

e FMEEREAENARERARMAGLAISESE
13 58 3 S35 XA R B 2 Se R IR B TR BIRfAET

° Comparing the actual cost incurred during the year
to the supporting documents of subcontractors,
suppliers and direct labour to ensure the validity and
accuracy of the costs;

e BFERNERKAESBR HEBIEESINER
S HETTEER - DAREMR AN E9 8 UM B e 1

° Visiting the construction sites and interviewing the
project managers, or traced to final account of the
construction project to understand the completion
status of the relevant construction project; and

o RN WHIARKLEmWAK  SEMEEIAR
WAEERENTHERZEEANTIER &

° Evaluating the reasonableness of progress towards
complete satisfaction of construction contracts to
test the accuracy of revenue recognition for the year.

e FHMERIRESHNNERRSEIE  WARFAKE
FERR E BRI -

EIMEIENAERAT 2021 FERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B HRE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B e RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

2B B E ST RS M |
ARENERE

BENERT  ERBEEFZHERBGERY
RAEVBHRABRIS M EHNRIFRE
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BENAD  BEFMEMCATAEHAESR
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BCEREHELDETHET  EX—BKX
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B B HRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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B e RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chan King Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBRmREMEE KSR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

2021 2020
2021 F 2020
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFI T FEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REZ) (Fe=%)
Revenue e 5 184,496 276,790
Cost of services ARG AR 2R (141,057) (216,959)
Gross profit ESA 43,439 59,831
Other income E A A 6 1,310 1,023
Impairment losses under expected credit FEHIEEEEER T2
loss model, net of reversal ERTE - MRED 8 (42) 25
Administrative expenses THAX (15,556) (15,899)
Finance costs BhE AR 7 (47) 81)
Listing expenses Bl 3 - (15,135)
Profit before tax B F5 AT 4 ) 29,104 29,764
Income tax expense FriS®if X 11 (2,866) (3,091)
Profit and total comprehensive income  FE % F| R 2 E U A 4258
for the year 9 26,238 26,673
Basic earnings per share (MOP cents) ERREARRR CRPIL) 13 5.25 6.23

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ra MR R R

At 31 December 2021
®20214F12 A31H

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEFI T FHEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(BEZ) (EZ)

Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 14 301 452
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 1,793 1,483
Deposits B 17 13,788 13,838
15,882 15,773

Current assets REEE
Contract assets BHEE 16 45,342 51,371
Trade and other receivables B 5 Nk EmEWRFIE 17 37,674 40,218
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITFRK 18 1,874 -
Short-term bank deposits RHARTTE R 18 124,535 62,651
Bank balances SRIT4ERR 18 49,635 90,832
259,060 245,072
Current liabilities FREBEE

Contract liabilities SHBE 19 402 11,180
Trade payables and accruals BEEMNTERIESER 20 33,591 32,5657
Lease liabilities HEaE 21 658 1,018
Tax liabilities HIEARE 3,188 5,604
37,839 50,359
Net current assets REEEFEE 221,221 194,713

Non-current liability kRBERS
Lease liabilities HEaE 21 693 314
Net assets EEFE 236,410 210,172

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital A& 7R 22 5,150 5,150
Reserves i 231,260 205,022
Total equity A 236,410 210,172

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 175 were $96%E 175 B MG A VB HE DN 202243
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25  F25 BEEE&#t & MIFETIE - WH T
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: BEEREREE:

CHEONG Ka Wo LEONG Kam Leng

REA RERK
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF £

BIHEIERERAG 2021 FEHRS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

Share Share Legal Other Retained
capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total
BA  ROOEE ARG HtRE REER B3t
MOP000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000
FRFr  TRFIr  FRFIr TRz FRFIr  TRMT
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hist1)  (Bi2)
At 1 January 2020 7202041 A1 8 = 35,569 30 (35,509) 102,341 102,431
Profit and total comprehensive S NIERHEH &
income recognised for the year 2 EE - - - - 26,673 26,673
Issue of shares pursuant to BEE RN EBTEITRG
capitalisation issue (note 22) (Kr:#22) 4,088 (4,088) - - - -
Issue of shares pursuant to BEAREERTRG
public offering (note 22) (Fist22) 1,062 105,131 - - - 106,193
Share issue costs BT AR - (25,125) - - - (25,125)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 129,014 210,172
Profit and total comprehensive  F AL HF| &
income recognised for the year 2 E U548 %58 - - - - 26,238 26,238
At 31 December 2021 2021512 A31H 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 155,252 236,410
Note 1:  In accordance with provision of the Macau Commercial Code, the subsidiary Kiar1 - WHBERPmE LRGN MRS RIITHE
incorporated in Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) is required (I8P ) s MBI B A RBETEE KR
to transfer a minimum of 25% of the profit after taxation each year to the MBSO RN ERE XFHE &
legal reserve until the balance meets 50% of its registered capital. The EZREGEINHTMEARNS50% A 1E © 5%
reserve is not distributable to shareholders. FEET A DR TR o
Note 2:  Other reserves represent the difference between the carrying amount  fifz72 . EEEEEENR2017F12848 AZE

MOP60,000 of total equity of Kento Engineering Co. Ltd (“Kento”) satisfied
by the way of issue of shares by the Company for acquisition of Kento by
Macau E&M Company Limited, pursuant to the reorganisation which was
completed on 4 December 2017 in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

* less than MOP1,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN BB
e }Eﬁblbié‘%
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

2021
2021 F

MOP’000
FHRFIT

2020

2020 F
MOP’000
FEFIT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before tax BR A5 A R 29,104 29,764
Adjustments for: BLATIHE EH A% -
Finance costs & R AN 47 81
Depreciation of ITIEERITE
— Property, plant and equipment —VE BWENEKE 286 306
— Right-of-use assets —(ERAREE 769 814
Impairment losses under expected credit TEEEEEBEXRREEE -
loss model, net of reversal MR 42 (25)
Bank interest income RITH BHA (1,299) (282)
Operating cash flows before movements in LEEACEHANLERSRE
working capital 28,949 30,658
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 R HAb EUGRIER A (35 00)
other receivables 2,946 (6,289)
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD 6,059 25,540
Increase in trade payables and accruals B S e IR R IERT B AR N 1,034 15,000
Decrease in contract liabilities aHBERD (10,778) (19,471)
Net cash generated from operations KEPTIRIR & F58 28,210 45,438
Income tax paid BAFTSH (5,282) (12,019)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZEFFBRETE 22,928 33,419
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Placement of short-term bank deposits FEARERITER (124,535) (73,181)
Placement of pledged bank deposits HFAREMRITER (1,874) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEME WENEE (135) 7
Redemption of short-term bank deposits & 58 BRI TIF K 62,651 10,530
Interest received EFE 875 44
Redemption of pledged bank deposits BRI HARITER - 2,710
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZBAREFHR
ACTIVITIES (63,018) (59,914)

BTHEIERBRAR

2021 FEHE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

2021
2021 F

MOP’000
FHRFIT

@]e)

2020

2020 F
MOP’000
FHEFIT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of lease liabilities BERHEAE (1,060) (1,018)
Interest paid ERTFLE (47) 81)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN FTiS F00E - 106,193
Share issue costs paid BTN BEITR AR - (21,805)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING RUEEE (FTA) T8RS FE

ACTIVITIES (1,107) 83,289
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReRRLSEEY (RL) EMNFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (41,197) 56,794
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUNRERELEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 90,832 34,038
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FEREERESEEY

END OF THE YEAR
Represented by bank balances LASRITEE SR 2D 49,635 90,832

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

H=E

1.

2021 F12 A 31 HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Macau E&M Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 24 October 2017. lts registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is located at Estrada Marginal do Hipodromo,
No. 56-68, Edifilio Industrial Lee Cheung, 13 Andar D, Macau.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries (together with the Company referred
to as the “Group”) are engaged in the provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering works; and maintenance and repair
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Macanese
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“lIASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the IASB issued
in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include as
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when determining
the net realisable value of inventories.

— &SR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12 31 HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

N

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

102

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®
Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates?®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020?
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2028.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
these new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an
entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy
information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(continued)

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such
items to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be
observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such a case,
an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the
latest available, reliable information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates (continued)

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in IAS
8 Definition of Accounting Estimates is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15
and 24 of IAS 12 Income Taxes (“IAS 12”) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3.2, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 requirement to the relevant assets and liabilities as
a whole. Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and
liabilities are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognises a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary different can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for
all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with
the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (continued)

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to the
amendments amounted to MOP1,793,000 and MOP1,351,000,
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing the full
impact of the application of the amendments.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Group have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements are determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
lease transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
IFRS16 Leases (“IFRS 16”), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”). In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict
the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or
services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using the most likely amount, which better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (continued)

Variable consideration (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of IFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parks and apartments that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:
o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; and

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less
any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

3.

aljp

EUBBRRERS
AT BUR AV AR RE 2 (i)

3.2 EAESFTBER &)

B Bh

B EEA A ERRANEE
115 8 ST P B 75 A f6% 4 B s B A7 B
W5 T LARER o

B2 U A B R RO R MR R T 8 B R A
REELNHAXHERNMEE
HE M TASERNE BERK
RIS - RERK
HIR IR iR - MBI A
AL 2 T2 -

BRIRBRIBL A
TE B HFOR KR MG & A R
R EBRM RS MM S BIHKE

IREFFERR AR ©

HHESER

g AR B RN iR B IR AR
BIEHHE T RERENE
BER - AR HEE RN
RRAX  RIFBRMEREE
AIZRE AR ENFTABE
AR Bl 55 & Bl o

EEMES BN (PN TE R H

&) IR N S B R R
aE-

EIMEIENAERAT 2021 FERS

117



118

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
deposits, interest receivables, trade receivables, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances)
and contract assets which are subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

0

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.2 EXSFTBER &

N—

ST EE)
THEEE)
(v FBHEEEEGZERE

W3 ()

PEEBFEMS - AEER
I 2 4B B A TR

o AR

s BEBAMME - RR
RITE R

o INEMEERFAR(fHRIE

A=l
1=)e°

DM EEETE BT 0 A
FEIR B AR A AP BB 0 A A
BROEERRESE

AEBFEEABAESRT
A (T BHEE S REKIAR
BHEE)WEREENRER
mERE R E R S EE

W35 38 R B AR TE R AR R

A -
HILTER B EE

Mt EEWRRBRERELZ AR
NMEZH eMEECEEL
AEECHENESREERGR
ZRBARE D B e B R T
—EE USREEMRRLE

AR SHRANET B & Al
BER BEREERCKNE
WHREEMZHHNZBENEBERA

EIMEIENAERAT 2021 FERS

127



128

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generated unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating units
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3.2, the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Construction contracts in respect of electrical
and mechanical engineering works

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total costs to
complete the satisfaction of electrical and mechanical engineering
works and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by the management of
the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management of the Group. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the Group
conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
Such significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

U N C ERTAINTY (continued)

Construction contracts in respect of electrical
and mechanical engineering works (continued)

Recognised amounts of revenue from electrical and mechanical
engineering contracts and related receivables reflect the
management’s best estimate of each contract’s outcome and
progress towards complete satisfaction, which are determined on
the basis of a number of estimates. This includes the assessment
of the profitability of on-going electrical and mechanical
engineering contracts. For more complex contracts in particular,
costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to
significant estimation uncertainty, the actual outcomes in terms of
total cost may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years and adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date. The amount of revenue from construction
contracts in respect of electrical and mechanical engineering
works during the year ended 31 December 2021 is
MOP180,071,000 (2020: MOP272,519,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Except for certain trade receivables and contract assets with
individual significant balances, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract assets
are grouped based on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The internal credit
ratings are based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the contract assets, trade receivables and ECL
are disclosed in notes 16, 17 and 27b respectively.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of trade receivables
(net of allowance for credit losses) of the Group were
MOP33,694,000 (2020: MOP39,310,000) (note 17). At 31
December 2021, the carrying amounts of contract assets (net of
allowance for credit losses) of the Group were MOP45,342,000
(2020: MOP51,371,000) (note 16).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amount received and
receivable for revenue arising from E&M engineering works and
maintenance and repair services.

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the executive directors of the Company, who are
also the directors of Kento, the sole operating subsidiary of the
Group, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”),
review the overall results and financial position of the Group as a
whole prepared based on same accounting policies set out in
note 3.2. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating
segment and no further discrete financial information nor analysis
of this single segment is presented. No analysis of the Group’s
assets and liabilities is disclosed as such information is not
regularly provided to the CODM for review.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

Revenue from construction contracts &ZES W E
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Electrical and mechanical engineering HE T2
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Provision of services RIERE
Maintenance and repair services RERUERS 4,425 4,271
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Construction contracts

The Group provides electrical and mechanical engineering
works to customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced.

Progress towards complete satisfaction is measured based
on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred for work
performed to date) relative to the total expected inputs to
the satisfaction of that performance obligation (i.e. total
estimated contract cost), that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

For construction contracts that contain variable
consideration such as variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payment, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount. The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the construction contract only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result in a
significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same
contract, is recognised over the period in which the
construction contracts are performed representing the
Group’s right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges from
one to two years from the date of the practical completion of
the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability
period expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services performed comply
with agreed upon specifications and such assurance cannot
be purchased separately.

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash
advances before construction activities commence, contract
liabilities will arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until
the revenue recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds
the amount of the cash advances.

Provision of services

The Group’s maintenance and repair services involve the
provision of services on the low voltage systems, heating,
ventilation and air-conditioning systems and/or extra low
voltage systems to customers.

The Group provides such services as a fixed-price contract,
with contract terms generally ranging from one year to three
years. Revenue from fixed price contracts for delivering such
services is recognised over time, when the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits from the
Group’s performance. Such services are recognised using a
straight-line basis over the term of the contract.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. WERDEER =)

INFORMATION (continued)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PEHEXFENRGRE
performance obligation for contracts with NEENRZER
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining DBCE FIERE 4B (REASED
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) DARERE)HIR HEE RIERI
and the expected timing of recognising revenue are as W TEERE RN T ¢
follows:

At 31 December 2021 MR2021F12A31H

Electrical

and
mechanical Maintenance
engineering and repair

works services
RER

BEIR HEIERRTE
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHF T FEFIT

Within one year —FR 153,830 3,028
More than one year but not —F L BT BAMRME
more than two years 52,374 1,209
More than two years A 17,640 332
223,844 4,569
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A 31 H

Electrical

and
mechanical Maintenance
engineering and repair

works services
RER

HE TR HEE AR TS
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEPIT TFEFIT

Within one year —F R 213,570 4,059

More than one year but not —F L BT EBAME
more than two years 14,672 1,035
228,242 5,094
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(iv) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue is all derived from operations in Macau
and the Group’s non-current assets are all located in Macau.

(v) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers in respect of electrical and
mechanical engineering works and maintenance and repair
services of the year contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

Customer A =ZFA
Customer B1 2P B1
Customer B2 BFB2
Customer B3 ZFB3
Customer C BFEC
Customer D ZFD

5. gz koEHER @

(iv) tHEER
7N 55 B ) U 35 2 7 B PR PI ) 2
R E BRI B E SR
SRPT o

v) FEEFER

FA - EREERKERE10% 1
ETIRERRERBERBER
EUERE ST

2021 2020
20215 2020 4

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
TRFIT TRFIT

N/A B * 60,989
62,376 55,405
12,792 76,021

29,928 N/ATERA*
31,090 N/ATEB*
19,706  N/ATER*

*

Revenue from the relevant customer was less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue for the respective year.

Note: Customers B1, B2 and B3 are entities belonging to the same
group.

* REBEE  HETFEMHk=ED
RASEEBKZEN10% ©

fet - EFEB1-B2RB3ABIREA—%
EHEE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMW A

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 £

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
TRFIT TRFIT

Bank interest income HRITA WA 1,299 282
Government grant (Note) RS AL (A 3E) - 200
Foreign exchange gains SNE U 28 - 155
Others Hib 11 386
1,310 1,023
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, Covid-19 related government Mfat - B E2020F 12 B31BILFE » AEEH
grants amounted to MOP200,000 (2021: nil) was received by the Group. Uk BY Covid—19 #H B8 BT 18 B 200,000 /2
F97C(20214F « &) -
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. AIERAK
Finance costs represent interest on lease liabilities. BEMRAEHEAENS o
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER 8. EHiIEEEEEXTH
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, BAEEE 0 HIREE

NET OF REVERSAL

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
FHAAT  TRT

Impairment losses recognised (reversed) on: gt LA T B iR R E /518 (#(@) -

— Trade receivables — B RINFIA 72 (29
— Contract assets — AREE (30) 4
42 25)

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 27b. BREBEGETEBE NI 27b °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. FRiEA

2021 2020
20215 2020 £

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
TRFIT TRFIT

Profit for the year has been arrived at F A MR (GEA) T3
after charging (crediting): ZIEBEY
Directors’ emoluments (note 10(a)) EE=ME (Wit 10(a) 4,010 1,727
Other staff costs: H 8 TR :
— Salaries and other allowances — e M EMER 20,919 24,684
— Retirement benefit scheme — BRIREFIE I
contributions 90 110
Total staff costs BB TR 25,019 26,521
Less: amounts included in cost of services 7 : 5+ ABRFE AL A K 201E (17,291) (19,515)
7,728 7,006
Auditor’s remuneration AN & 2,063 1,682
Depreciation of e
— Property, plant and equipment — ME - BWENMRE 286 306
— Right-of-use assets — FREEE 769 814
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12 31 HIEFE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021

@]e)

10.EEREEME

(@) £

RIBER EHARARFERRE
PIRENAFEEENRRTH
ANBFBT

BZE2021F12A31BLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
allowances bonus contributions Total
ek EIRER
e Hitn28k g Tl w3t
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRAT FRFT FRAT FRFT FRFT
Executive directors (Note a): WTES (Mita) -
Mr. Cheong Ka Wo REMEE
(“Mr. Cheong’) ([R%EE]) - 3,000 - 1 3,001
Mr. Leong Kam Leng ReRFEHE
(“Mr. Leong’) (1R%£]) - 600 - 1 601
- 3,600 - 2 3,602
Independent non-executive BURTES (Hitb) :
directors (Note b):
Mr. Law Lap Tak BaELE 136 - - - 136
Ms. Lee Sze Ming FRIELZT 136 - - - 136
Mr. Chan Ming Kit BREGEE 136 - - - 136
408 - - - 408
408 3,600 - 2 4,010
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) Directors (continued) @

10.EEREEME @

=3¢ )
HE2020F12 A31 BIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
fiee allowances bonus  contributions
e RN
ko H ity 28 BfEiEa IR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TR TR BFT;
Executive directors (Note a): WTES (Wita):
Mr. Cheong Ka Wo REMLE
(“Mr. Cheong’) ([R%EE]) - 1,417 - 1 1,418
Mr. Leong Kam Leng RERRE
(“Mr. Leong’) ([R%4]) - 183 - = 183
- 1,600 - 1 1,601
Independent non-executive BUFHTESZ(Mth)
directors (Note b):
Mr. Law Lap Tak BnEEE 42 - - - 42
Ms. Lee Sze Ming FRELZT 42 - - - 42
Mr. Chan Ming Kit R EE 42 - - - 42
126 - - - 126
126 1,600 - 1 1,727

* less than MOP1,000 * T~ 1,0002P9 7T

Notes: Btat -

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (a) P ITEENMES ARERE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the BANG RAEBELTIRER
Company and the Group. Mr. Cheong is also the chief executive BHME - RELEMARERR
of the Group for both years. MEEEZBEHNITE °

(b)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (b) LB TIEMTEENM S AR

above were for their services as directors of the Company, who
were appointed on 21 August 2020.

SREEARRAEEMERREN
B4 0 RSN 202048 A21 HE
Lo
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
include one (2020: one) executive director. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2020: four) individuals of the Group for
the year are as follows:

@]e)

10.EEREEMES»

b) EE

TEERAFEN AR TS H W
AT BIE—2 (20204 : —£)#
TEE - NEEHE%IE A (2020
F R BAAREAFEENMES I

T
2021 07240]
2021 % 2020 4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRAZ  FRFT
Salaries and other allowances Ha M EAMERL 2,850 2,724
Discretionary bonus (Note) B I5IELL (B 7E) 2,703 2,517
Retirement benefit scheme contributions :E k& 5T 24 2% 4 4
5,657 5,245

Note: The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the duties
and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group and
the Group’s performance.

The number of highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Miat - BOBTEAL Y2 ZE A EE N AR
ALEBE R EEARAKREEDN
RAMEE °

FHNRATEERLWIEART
BEXxZESFMEEHBNT

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F

Nil to Hong Kong dollars Z % 1,000,000;8 T ([E7T])
(“HK$”) 1,000,000 - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /87T £ 1,500,000 75 7T 4 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No director has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11.Fi 88X

2021 2020
20214 2020 F
MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000
FHEF5 T FHEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(IEZ) (F2E%)
Macau Complementary Tax SEPIFTIS TR
Current tax BIHATH 18 3,156 5,605
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE (322) (2,514)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEN
Current tax RVER I8 32 -
2,866 3,091

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
registered in Hong Kong. The Cayman Islands tax is exempted,
but the Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and it is
qualified for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HKD2
million of the assessable profits is taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

The Company’s operating subsidiary is subject to Macau
Complementary Tax at a rate of 12% on the assessable income
exceeding MOP600,000 for both years.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

AARDRIRAEHE MK L ERE
Bt - HEREHERS  BEARQHA)
ABMB ARG - WS EBFEM
RGBS - ERBUETEH2A BB
TR 8.25% B - BA T FE R Bl m A%
16.5% #Fi

ARBEENBARARREMEFE
#8 tH 600,000 % P9 7T 9 J& 3R Bt 4 A PA
12% BB R BARFIFTIS AT -

FAMGHAX RGBS N EME
S R MR BR B AT R B BR AT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 &
MOP’000 MOP’ 000
FEFI T FHEPIT
Profit before tax B 758 A1 g ) 29,104 29,764
Tax charge at Macau Complementary R12% KRRPIFTS AR R R ER
Tax rate of 12% RIES 3,492 3,572
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ FA[KINFIBRE L ~ BB 2
tax purposes - 2,105
Tax effect of income not taxable for DARBBRA Z BIE 2
tax purpose (232) -
Special complementary tax incentive FF R4 B R 16 e (72) (72)
Overprovision in prior years B FEBERE (322) (2,514)
Income tax expense for the year FABEZH 2,866 3,091
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

12.DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or proposed for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting periods.

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings BF|
Earnings for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share
(profit for the year attributable to

the owners of the Company)

@]e)

1 2- Hﬁ/%\

B &= 20214 &2020F12 A31H I
EERMNEZRMEE - BREH
REB TR SR AR AR B, ©

13. 8RR &R

ADTEA AR SREARF T4
TR

2021
2021 F
MOP’ 000

2020
2020 4F
MOP’ 000
FHEFIT
(Audited)
(F&E%)

FHEFT T
(Audited)
(RREX)

AEEBREARNNEN
(RRRHEB ANEEERER)

26,238 26,673

’000 ‘000
Fi Fhg
Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary STESRERETIN TR
shares for the purpose of calculating kg

basic earnings per share

500,000 428,450

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
has been adjusted retrospectively for the capitalisation of shares
as disclosed in note 22.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years as there
was no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of HK2.03 cents
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK3.97 cents (2020: Nil), has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14.9% - BERRE

Furniture
Leasehold Motor Office and
improvements vehicles  equipment fixtures Machinery Total
HENEEE B BARE HKARRE B st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FREFT FRFIT FRFT FREFT FRFT FEFT
COST B
At 1 January 2020 1202051418 1,429 140 237 411 9 2,226
Additions AE - - 11 6 - 17
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H 1,429 140 248 417 9 2,243
Additions AE - 129 6 - - 135
At 31 December 2021 2021 F12A31H 1,429 269 254 417 9 2,378
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 947 139 147 247 5 1,485
Provided for the year FERE 189 - 39 76 2 306
At 31 December 2020 #2020F12 A31H 1,136 139 186 328 7 1,791
Provided for the year FERE 187 15 28 54 2 286
At 31 December 2021 2021512 A31H 1,323 154 214 377 9 2,077
CARRYING VALUES W
At 31 December 2021 #2021 F12 4318 106 115 40 40 - 301
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H 293 1 62 94 2 452

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease HEMERE RIEEER A
Motor vehicles 20% =287 20%
Office equipment 20% EENT 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% REAREE 20%
Machinery 20% AR, 20%

W - BB RERE IR A A E R
HANABREIR AT ERNRFE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15.FFEEE

146

Office
premises Warehouse Car park Printers Total
MAYZE BE BEG TEH# et
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TFHEFTT TRFIT FHEFIT TRFTT FHFIT
COST R
At 1 January 2020 20201 B1H 1,867 1,332 68 329 3,596
Additions NE - 1,048 - - 1,048
At 31 December 2020 7 2020F 12 A31H 1,867 2,380 68 329 4,644
Additions NE 937 - 142 - 1,079
At 31 December 2021 72021 F 12 A31H 2,804 2,380 210 329 5,723
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2020 2020F 1A 18 901 1,230 26 190 2,347
Provided for the year FERE 410 299 34 71 814
At 31 December 2020 72020 12 A31H 1,311 1,529 60 261 3,161
Provided for the year FERE 410 262 53 44 769
At 31 December 2021 2021 F12A31H 1,721 1,791 113 305 3,930
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 2021 F12 A31H 1,083 589 97 24 1,793
At 31 December 2020 7 2020F 12 A31H 556 851 8 68 1,483
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

15. RlGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

15.FFEEE®»

2021 2020
20215 2020 &

MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000
FHRFIT TRFIT

Expense relating to short-term leases HEHRHAEEHENAX 243 385
Total cash outflow for leases (Note a) HEReR T B8 (Wita) 1,350 1,484
Additions to right-of-use assets (Note b) REFRAEESE(KiEb) 1,079 1,048
Notes: Kzt

(@ Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities and short-term leases. These amounts are presented in
operating or financing cash flows.

(b) Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered
and lease modification.

For both years, the Group leases office premises, warehouse, car
parks and printers for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of one year to five years (2020: one year to five
years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car parks
and apartments. At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to
which the short-term lease expense incurred during the year.

During the current year, the Group entered into new lease
agreement for the use of one car park (2020: use of a warehouse).
Lease liabilities of MOP1,079,000 (2020: MOP1,048,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets attributable to new
leases entered into. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes. These are the major non-cash
lease related transactions for the current year.

@ ZEeEERHERENEAS LA ED
UAREHEE - ZESEAINRERD

MERZD -

b) ZEHEEENBFINEEELNERRE
BEKEEER -

RREFE  AEESEERIME
RE  RESRITOHANRESE -1
EAHMEEBR A1 FE5% (2020
F1FESF) - HEGRBIIRERE R
RETEERE B2 8B TRMNER
R - REETE R K AF ST A BUH
BHRER  AKEERANNERL
BEAKA @I NITA R -

AEBFEHARFES R AT EHHE
& o 72021F K2020F12 4318 -
REASESEUREHREER I NF
NEEMERHEHRES -

RAFE - NEEFFERFEES (2020
FoFRAEE)F U BEERZ-
1,079,000 & F9 7T (2020 % : 1,048,000
BPT) MEEAETAEEHEED
BEFERAEEERR - HERR LB
MEMZERTE  REBEABEHE
BEPHERRERRIN - HEEETH
BIEEERBRMIER - ZEXHHAF
EEXZIIRAEMRERS -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

16.CONTRACT ASSETS

The contract assets arising from electrical and mechanical
engineering works, and maintenance and repair services are as

@]e)

16. 50 EE

BETRRUARRERBERIEELENE
WEEWMT :

follows:
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000
FHF5 T FHEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REZR) (FeEZ)
Contract assets from contracts with BREANELENENEE
customers 45,476 51,535
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 27b) & : = & 518 8HE (M1 27b) (134) (164)
45,342 51,371
Represented by: (A
Electrical and mechanical engineering HETE
works 45,158 51,201
Maintenance and repair services REREERT 184 170
45,342 51,371
Analysed as current ST A ENHEA
Unbilled revenue ENGEEA 28,978 44,804
Retention receivables FEWIREE € 16,364 6,567
45,342 51,371

At 1 January 2020, contract assets amounted to MOP76,915,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance in
satisfying the respective performance obligations at the reporting
date on construction contracts in respect of electrical and
mechanical engineering works, and maintenance and repair
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the rights become unconditional.

Change of contract assets as at 31 December 2021 represents
the contract revenue recognised ahead of the accumulated

progress billings.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

16.CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Construction contracts

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits and typically net
offs the deposits with first payments. Unbilled revenue included in
contract assets represents the Group’s rights to receive
consideration for works completed but not yet billed because the
exercise of such rights is conditional upon customers’ satisfaction
on the contract work completed by the Group, customers’ or
external surveyors’ issuance of certification on the works or the
payment milestones being met. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains
certification of the completed contract works from customers or
external surveyors or meets payment milestones.

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging from
one year to two years for 5% to 10% of the contract value. This
amount is included in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on satisfying the defect liability period of individual
contracts. The Group typically reclassifies contract assets to trade
receivables when defect liability period expires.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle.

At 31 December 2021, retention money held by customers
for contract works amounted to MOP16,364,000 (2020:
MOP6,567,000). Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable at the end of the defect liability period of individual
contract, ranging from one year to two years from the date of the
completion of the respective projects.

16.5NEE =)

BESH

AERZZECHBRRBNRERR R
E-BEIETHEEER EARET
RS MERFR - AEEERETE
FREMBES  WEREATHNZHE
HIEE - ANEETRENAARKS
ERAEEARWEE T E H AR
MTRENRE  RESITELEERND
M REPHASETRHA L TR
FmE  BEPSSNPAIEMEZETIE
REEFRIEINMRBRRBERT AT
- ERANRBEGRGF(BERAE
BtE PN ERMBSE ERAE L
TRENEAIESNKERR) A1
BEEFEBREE S REGIR -

AEE—RITFEB LM —FEMFHR
BH - REXNEENS%E10% ° @R
AR BT m R @R A 4B R i & (RS
FTERESHRENK - B ZEBE
REPERABTASHNEE - EWRIE
BEEHERE  AEE-REENEE
ENDEREFEUGRIA -

AR AEEEHENERLLBHRAE
RAWEE BAKERIZEANEE
DER/RBEE

MN2021E12 A31F  EEMEALNT
2R 2 % 4 /416,364,00032F9 7T (2020
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

1 6.CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of retention money which is to
be settled, based on the expiry of defect liability period, at the end
of the reporting period.

@]e)

16.8EE »
BEEEeNE)

RImERR - HREEEHEMA S
MFEBRESMREDITNOT

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000
FHEFI T TFRFIT
Within one year N—F R 5,706 1,657
After one year — 1% 10,658 4,910
16,364 6,567
At 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s retention money M20215612 A31 B » st AR ERE

are debtors with a carrying amount of MOP653,000 (2020:
MOP1,009,000), which are past due but not impaired. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 27b.
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HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17.ES5 R EMEKRRE

2021 2020
20215 2020 £
MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000

FHEFT T FEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
(REZ) (EZ)

Trade receivables from contracts BEAHELANE ZERFUR
with customers 33,895 39,439
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 27) & : (= &S EEME (H1:527) (201) (129)
33,694 39,310
Other receivables, deposits and Ha U EE - e M
prepayments TERT IR
— Deposits (Note) — && (M) 14,037 14,002
— Prepayments — Jaf IR 2,567 506
— Interest receivables — EUF B 424 238
— Other receivables — EMpE IR 740 -
17,768 14,746
Total trade and other receivables B 5 N E MR B RE 51,462 54,056
Analysed as: DT :
Current mE 37,674 40,218
Non-current JERE 13,788 13,838
51,462 54,056
Note: The deposits primarily represented (i) the performance guarantee money Wit e EFERO(ASERE S FRIEAT
placed to the customers as securities of the performance of the Group’s R ETE B MIRRELIRES & (i)
E&M projects; and (i) rental deposits. HERS -
At 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts with M2020F1 A1H  BFAYEANE
customers amounted to MOP40,991,000. 5 FEUS FNIE A 40,991,000 8 FF T ©
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers. The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at
gross amount based on invoice date at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

@]e)

17.EZ R HMEWFIE @)

REBRTERFIIOANFHEER-
REMERR  BERBEAEFTENAE
SEEZRERWRIBABORE ST
T

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F
MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000

FRFIT THRFIT
(Audited) (Audited)

(RERZ) (EEZ)

0-30 days 0E 30K 24,025 20,196
31-60 days 31 E£60K 2,854 969
61-90 days 61 £ 90K 719 1,175
Over 90 days BB 90 X 6,297 17,099

33,895 39,439

At 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
MOP9,870,000 (2020: MOP19,243,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances approximately
MOP4,381,000 (2020: MOP13,210,000) have been past due over
90 days or more and are not considered as in default as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and amounts are
still considered as recoverable based on historical experience.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to the end
of each of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired are from customers
with good credit quality with reference to respective settlement
history and forward-looking information without undue cost and
effort. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 27b.
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18.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES

Pledged bank deposits EERIRITIF R
Short-term bank deposits REERIRITTIE R
Bank balances RITHE R

18.2IRIFMITER FEHIR
TR RITER

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 “F
MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000
FHEFIT FEFIT
1,874 -
124,535 62,651
49,635 90,832

Pledged bank deposits represent bank deposits which are
pledged to secure bank guarantee to the Group. At 31 December
2021, the pledged bank deposits carried interest at a fixed rates
ranging from 1.1% to 1.3% per annum.

At 31 December 2021, the short-term bank deposits carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 1.2% to 1.7% per annum (2020:
ranging from 1.2% to 1.9% per annum) and with original maturity
more than three months.

Bank balances carry at prevailing market interest rate of 0.01%
(2020: 0.01%) per annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

HK$ BT

BRI FERIE DM ERRE TR
EEMRITERNBITER - 122021
F12 A31H - EEMRITHERIZ BE
FRNENF1A1%E1.3% 8 °

MN2021FE12 A31 B » 2S5 EHRTE
R FE R RN F1.2% £ 1.7% (2020
FERNERNTF12%E21.9%) © AR
FIHARSEEE=EA -

FITHEBIZIBITMENERF 20.01%
(20204 : 0.01%):tE

AEEMDEMIRITER - HHRTHF
RRARITRERRTYIRAERRAA R B RE RV TI BE
BRUSNEEERTHE - #IIT

2021
2021 F

2020
2020 4F
MOP’ 000
FEPIT

MOP’ 000
TRFIT

166,726 144,675

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 27b.

RER O F BRI E27b
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19.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities from contract with
customers in relation to electrical and
mechanical engineering works

EEMENERE

ERRETIRENERPAH

@]e)

19. 85X A E

2021
2021 F
MOP’ 000

2020
2020 F
MOP’ 000
FEFIT
(Audited)
(Fe&:%)

FHEFT T
(Audited)
(REZK)

402 11,180

At 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to MOP30,651,000.

Contract liabilities are classified as current as they are expected
to be settled with the Group’s normal operating cycle.

Change of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 represents
the reduction of accumulated progress billings ahead of the
contract revenue recognised.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included in  F ¥zt A LB EEHH
the contract liabilities balance at the BRI 2

beginning of the year

N2020F1A1E A BEA
30,651,000 2F9 7T o

BHNRBESERREY - HHRERER
SELEKLBMAEE -

R2021F12 A1 HAYBEESIER
HREYRSZAIRETEERERD -

TRERDHEARETEHEESNAE
HREAM S

2021
2021 F
MOP’ 000

2020
2020 F
MOP’ 000
FHEFIT
(Audited)
(FeFE%)

FHEFI T
(Audited)
(R8T %)

11,180 30,651

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash advances
before construction activities commence, contract liabilities will
arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until the revenue
recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds the amount of the
cash advances.
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20.TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

20.%5@1#?&15&@#2

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4

MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000

FHEF T FEPIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(REX) (FeEH%)

Trade payables B 5N FIR 4,062 19,498
Accruals: JEETER :

— Accrued construction costs — JEETEEERA 22,618 6,002

— Accrued staff bonus — [EFTBE TIE4L 4,600 4,100

— Accrued legal and professional fees — B EARNEESBR 1,719 2,189

— Other accrued charges — HihfEz+E A 592 768

33,591 32,557

The credit period on trade payables ranges from 0 to 90 days. The
aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on invoice
dates at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

BIENFTIENEEHRNFOEIX -
RERERR  ARERERAHID
B8 5 ENFRREDITT -

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F

MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000

FHFIT FHFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(RREX) (FeEZ)

0-90 days 0&90K% 2,566 19,498
91-365 days 91 365K 1,496 -
4,062 19,498

BIHEIERERAG 2021 FEHRS
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HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

21.LEASE LIABILITIES 21.fAE&E

2021 2020
20215 2020 &

MOP’ 000 MOP’ 000
TRFIT TRFIT

Lease liabilities payable: JENEEAE :
Within one year —&FR 658 1,018
Within a period of more than one year —F L BT BBME

but not more than two years 466 312
Within a period of more than two years MFEL BT EBART

but not more than five years 227 2

1,351 1,332

Less: Amount due for settlement within o RNt EARBEER 20

12 months shown under current liabilities FIAREEE) (658) (1,018)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months A+ —{E B8 2| HifE&E 2 K18

shown under non-current liability FIASERBEE) 693 314
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease BRARNEEaENNET S EERF
liabilities is 5% (2020: 5%)). T A5% (20204 : 5%) °
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HZE2021F

Ended 31 December 2021
12A31HIEFE

22.SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

22. K DT ZBRA

Number of Share
shares capital
R3S E [
MOP’000
FRFIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FR0.01 BT ERER
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January 2020 M2020F1 A1H 38,000,000 391
Increase in authorised share capital (note a) SRR N (KYata) 1,962,000,000 20,209
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 R2020F K2 2021F12 A31H 2,000,000,000 20,600
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE
At 1 January 2020 A2020F1 A 18 1,000 =
Issue of shares pursuant to capitalisation REERNCBITRG (Fita)
issue (note a) 396,899,000 4,088
Issue of shares pursuant to public BB ARBERTRN (Hib)
offering (note b) 103,100,000 1,062
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 20204 ) 2021 F12 A31 H 500,000,000 5,150

*

Notes:

@

less than MOP1,000.

On 21 August 2020, the Company increased its authorised share capital
from HK$380,000 (equivalent to MOP391,400) divided into 38,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to
MOP20,600,000) divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each.

On 11 September 2020, a total of 396,899,000 ordinary shares were
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way of capitalisation
of a sum of HK$3,968,990 (equivalent to MOP4,088,060) standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company, and that such
shares to be allotted and issued to the persons whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company.

On 11 September 2020, 103,100,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.00
(equivalent to MOP1.03) by way of public offering with a total gross
proceed of HK$103,100,000 (equivalent to MOP106,193,000). On the
same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange.

All shares as at year ended 31 December 2021 rank pari passu
with the then existing shares in issue in all aspects.

* A 1,00008P9 7T ©

(a) 20204 8H21H  ARFWEETER
7~380,0007% 7T (185 74391,4000£ P T -
73 /38,000,000 % & X EI {8 0.01 BT HY
% 7 ) 1 A1 Z 20,000,000 7T (#8 & 7
20,600,00032F97T * % /4 2,000,000,000
AR SRR (E 0.01 B ITA L EAR) ©

R2020F9 A 118 » MEREARAR R
19 5 B AR /9 3 BR & %8 3,968,990 %8 7T (48
724,088,060 % P T ) Hy 77 = AL B 2 B
774 #£396,899,000 % #% M B A BR 7l 1
BRENBKD - MARBRMD IS KT
FRINARDNBBRRBROAL -

(b) 202049 F11H  UBEREEHRR
% 1.005 7T (FHER1.0338P970) H(B
& %% 77 AN A 8] 103,100,000 % & B2 @ &
001 B TH LM MTERIBREA
103,100,000% 7T ( /8 & 72 106,193,000
SRFITT) o RAIA - AR BRRDHEE AT
Eme

REZE2021F 12 A31 HIEFEE I
MBS HEER Z2IREEBTKRG

THRSES -
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23.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Place and
the date of

incorporation/ Issued and fully

Name of subsidiary establishment paid capital

HEMRIL
] PRt B2 B ERTRBRRAE

@]e)

23.FEM B A RFE

ARBRRERRER LEERFAZW
BRAFBZINT °

Shareholding/
equity interest
attributable
to the Company Principal activities
EDRIEGERE
[N TEXK
2021 2020
20214 20204

Directly held:

BERE

Macau E&M Company Limited  British Virgin Islands HK$1
30 October 2017

BIHERRLT KBRS 17T
2017910 A30H

Indirectly held:

EEHE

Kento Macau MOP60,000
27 January 2011

BB HF 60,0002 7T
2011F1/27H

24.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Employees employed by the Group’s operation in Macau are
members of government-managed social benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operation is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the social benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the social benefits scheme operated by the Macau
government is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.
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HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

25.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 August 2020
(“Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide employees, executives or officers,
subsidiaries, directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and distributors of the Group (“Participants”) with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company with a
flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
Participants. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 11
September 2020 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
shall remain in force for 10 years from that date. As at 31
December 2021, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 8 years and 8 months.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no option has been
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme.

25, %LH&@%E B2 RR

AATIBEF2020F 8 A 21 B &M —I18
B ERTE ([ BB AERT I ) o BERRAERT
EEEURAEENEE - ITTHRABK
Eﬁ%g WBA e EF  ZFHAA B

CREER BRSO HEE ([8HEE )
f@ﬁﬁéﬁ HE - BE - A EFe 4B
FrER/SRHEFSEENTN
M2 HERNESRAGMEREERD
e UREB2EE BT QRF =
BHRARRBREBRNOEE - B
BT 2020FE9 11 B AR - B 3E
FITHUBSEE] - BRIFTEI 8% A 5
RET10F A B & - 72021412 A 31
A BERETENFRSG TN A8FS
A -

RIEERAETE - TEERAQRES
BT BTERUATESE : () AR7
RO RIE L BRI TE © ()IRHRE
BEROBHAMEEANFHRT
B R(i) A RERHEE -

72021412 A 31 H }22020 5 12 A 31
A SRR R R R Bl
1718~ FESHER AR -
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26.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to its stakeholders and maintaining an
adequate capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remained
unchanged from prior year.

The Group regards capital as the equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group regularly reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risk associated with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new shares issues as well as the issue of new
debts.
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HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27a. Categories of financial instruments

27. WM T H
7a. 4RI AN S E

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
TRFIT TRFIT

Financial assets ERMEE
Amortised cost (including bank balances) #4674~ (B 3FIRIT4582) 224,939 207,033
Financial liabilities EA =K
Amortised cost b SiIDWIN 4,062 19,498
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,351 1,332

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits, interest receivables, other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and trade payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

27b.§ﬁr%l§t R EIE B ZERK

R

AEENTIBZEMTABRRES
FEUWRIR - B EBAE - B
U R - EERRITHER
REIRITIER - RITEHRRES
BN IR - ZEF M T AN
REM TR -

HZECMIAAHENEREBRE
mZER(EERRENER
®) - EERBRIRBESRR
B A a0 (] AR 5% 5 LB ) BUR 3
RIX - AREEEEEENME
EZTERE - AR A RO
RECEE 1 -
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27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group collects most of the revenue and incur most of
the expenditures in their respective functional currencies.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
purchase of raw materials that are denominated in a
currency other than the Group’s functional currency. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily HK$. The
management of the Group considers that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is insignificant
as the majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of each individual group entity and
HKS$ is pegged with MOP.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The carrying amounts of certain significant foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of each reporting period are as follows:

Assets
EE
2021

2021 §F
MOP’000

FREFIT

HK$ BT 206,702

@]e)

27. €@ T B

27b.

2020
2020 5
MOP’ 000
FEFIT

190,728

REREEEZERK
)

™5 B
EE

REE AR B AT RS T UER
KRB H WS R REBD X
e AEEHRENEERREER
REAEBINGEEEUINEE
SHER R R - EELER
RONEBIERET AKEHE
BERR  ARAREXIDR
ZAERNEEEREEMNER
BETERBTEBPITEE - &
7 5% [ By TE B O S BE LB 3
* o

7N S B 3R B X 4 SN SRR
Al ARBEEEEHIMNERR
EmERTEEFTFENRRT
BEZBE T EANIMNER

RERERE FERIAINE ST
ENEBEEREEAGEMNER
BT

Liabilities
=0
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFT T FEFIT

3,314 11,137
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits and bank balances.
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and fixed bank
deposits. The Group currently does not enter into any
hedging instrument for cash flow interest rate risk.

The management of the Group considers that the overall
interest rate risk is not significant and no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
will default on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. At 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of respective financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment for financial assets and contract assets under
ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

27. €@ T B
B BABRERBEERE

ﬁi(/{ﬁ/
miEREE (&)
REES

REBERZHMRNRITER K

fETT EAMERS @ RENER
$Elﬁﬁlmﬂrmﬂﬁ

Wﬁﬁﬁ R E BAERTTIE K

RN TFENEER - $%lﬁh

WERIR e REMNRERET (T

AT T A -

AREEEZERAEBAEAR
WFEK - B2 TR
S -

EERRRRERT G

uﬂﬂ&hﬁﬁlx%ﬂiTE
TEHANETHRAEBE RIS
EﬂaZfWﬁom2w1¢&2wo
F12A31H ANEEFTEERS
RRGEFREBITEETMER
REBAZMBEIENRAEE
Bk EEESGETBRIRSD
IR S IHeMEENRMEE -
REEWTHEEMEAmIE
iz AEAEN  NREESES
EEEMRBENEERR

AEBEEERBHEERER
ANEEMEEREGNEELETR
BTG - FEAEEEERRE
B ZAEERRS O REER
EFHE(ER) M E R T
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A M| RME

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising
from contracts with customers

At 31 December 2021, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 64% (2020: 76%) of the total trade receivables and
contract assets are due from the Group’s five largest
customers. The major customers of the Group are certain
reputable organisations and management of the Group
considered that the credit risk is insignificant after
considering their historical settlement and credit quality.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated its finance team to develop and
maintain the Group’s credit risk gradings to categories
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group’s own historical repayment records to rate its
major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and
contract assets with individual significant balances are
assessed for impairment individually, the remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed collectively
using a collective basis with appropriate groupings. In this
regard, the management of the Company considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Deposits and interest receivables

Management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessment on the recoverability of these items based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

The management of the Group believes that there is no

material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of deposits and interest receivables.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

rating
ABREEFR it

Description

Very low risk The counterparty has a very low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts
wmERR RHHFNENEREE - CEEMAHFER
Low risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle in full
Bk ERABERIPRRES  ERE2EREE
High risk There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources
BER BBBATRINDE R E M BRETNRIERL -
FERBBEEEM
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired
B BERSRAEELREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
g ERSRABBABARENMBRE  AMAKE

WEIFEN R EWE

27. €@ T B

7. RABEEBEERK
®RE)

EE R KR ER (2

EHEFIRITZH ~ FHIIRIT

TFR R IRIT 45 65

HRRSHFHREREREERT
RRBF LR EEFRHRT
BARERBDESHENEER
BAR -

AEBOAEEER RS HFE

BIEATER

Trade receivables/
contract assets

Other financial assets

ERRRHE/ANEE HtSMEE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
PHEREERE -
BEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
PHRBEEEE -
BEERNE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

HBEMEERE -
BEERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
2HBRBEREE -
BEEEERE

Amount is written off

FORC B

BTHEIERBRAR

12m ECL

REABRHEERR

12m ECL

12 BHEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

PHBEMEERE -
BiEERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

L HRBEEER -
BEEEERE

Amount is written off

EREIRE Sk

2021 FEHE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €T B
27b.Financial risk management objectives and 2. EREE B ER K
policies (continued) K@)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEmREBETE (E)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the THRIAMINEAREBREREER
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are AMBENEZERRE %54
subject to ECL assessment: BERANEEBETENRESE
iET -
External Internal 12m or Gross carrying amount
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL At 31 December
P A 12875, R12A31 B
FEHR  REIR 2HRHEERS FEAE
2021
2021 %
MOP’000
FRA7
Deposits 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 14,037 14,002
ke - TR £ 12fAREHEEESR
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 740 -
EftEdE TER [ERER 12fAREHEEESR
Interest receivables 17 A+ N/A 12m ECL 424 238
FEMHIE TER 12fAREHEEESR
Trade receivables from 17 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (collective 6,901 39,439
contracts with customers assessment)
ERENEENEARIGE TER (B32) PHEHEEER(RRTH)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual 25,159 -
assessment)
Bk P HREBEEEE(ERE)
Loss Credit-impaired 1,835 -
BB BRERERA
33,895 39,439
Contract assets 16 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (collective 18,326 51,535
assessment)
aHEE el (B32) PHRBEEER(RETH)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual 21,150 -
assessment)
R PHEHEEEE(ERFMR)
45,476 51,535
Pledged bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 1,874 -
EERRIER TER 12ARESHEEESR
Short-term bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 124,535 62,651
RHRITEH TR 1REARREERS
Bank balances 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 49,635 90,832
ikt TER 12fAREHEEESE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes:
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

27. €@ T B
7. RABEEBEERK

RE)
EE R RRESEE)

et

1. BRAMEERREREMS A%
[ {50 R 260 A B AR (S B )R HERR
EERRRIECEEEM -

Not past due

REH
MOP’ 000
TH#FTT
At 31 December 2021 #2021 F12A831H
Deposits b 14,037 14,037
At 31 December 2020 A2020512H31H
Deposits o 14,002 14,002
2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied 2. HEZERFEBEREHNEEM

the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on
these items by using collective basis, grouped by internal credit
rating.

Internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit ratings to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of small customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables and contract assets which
are assessed on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired). Trade receivables and contract assets with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired with
gross carrying amounts of MOP26,994,000 and
MOP27,150,000 respectively, as at 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil and Nil) were assessed individually.

5 AEEERBEBREBRE
ERFIRN LA ER IR
HiEERENERER BFRAS
BAREBEEHACHECER
ENEBAN - AEEFEHHIR
BEERABEESHEIE)EE
ZEEENEPEERRE -

R &b 15 EFFAR

ERAEEEERRERN
o ARBEHEPRAANRSEE
ARARERE  ARZREEFP
BRAEABARREREFEN N
WEP ERXFEPREAOEK
KA B B BFAMNRESD » T
REINEBE S RYGIALE D
BENGEERBRGRONELR T
REZHRHERSE(BEER
B8) NI KR EEFE - 12021
F12A31H EAEAKREE
BBRICDBEEERENESE
WHKIE AR EERERED 5
26,994,000 2 1 7T % 27,150,000
MPITT (2020 F © TRE) {EFI#
1M
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Internal credit rating (continued)

Gross carrying amount

@]e)

27. €@ T B

7b.F AR EEBEERK
RE)

FE R KR ER L (E)

REBIS EFFAR (4)
ARETAE(E

2021 2020

2021 % 2020
Internal RABEEFR Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
credit rating loss rate  receivables assets loss rate receivables assets
ToERE BHERHE BHNEE  THEEX ZFH5REFE BHERE
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFT FRFIT FRFIT FRFIT
Very low risk BERR 0.01% 1,043 5,628 0.019% 266 1,064
Low risk EEK 0.49% 5,688 12,044 0.1%-0.5% 33,342 37,181
High risk SRR 4.76% 170 654 0.7% 5,831 13,290
6,901 18,326 39,439 51,535

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
reversed MOP124,000 and MOP156,000 (2020: reversed
impairment allowance of MOP29,000 for trade receivables
and provided impairment allowance of MOP4,000 for
contract assets) impairment allowance for trade receivables
and contract assets under collective basis, respectively. The
Group also provided impairment allowances of MOP72,000
and MOP126,000 (2020: nil and nil) for trade receivables and
contract assets due from debtors with significant balances,
and impairment allowance of MOP124,000 (2020: nil) for
credit-impaired debtors.
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REED R DE 5 ERFRIE R
EHEEREEREENRERE
124,000 2 P97t & 156,000 )2 97T
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Internal credit rating (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables and contract
assets under the simplified approach.

27. €@ T B

7b.F AR EEBEERK
RE)

EE R KR ER (2

REBIS EFFAR (4)
ARETAEE (4)

TREINRBERTERE S E
WHRIBERANEERRANEHE
HEEEENES -

Trade receivables Contract assets

BaEYE
Lifetime
ECL
(not credit-

impaired)
PHRNCERE 2HRNCEFR 2MRIGEEE 20RNGCEFE
(BEEHE) (CREGENR) (BEEHE) (CREGENR) ast

MOP000

ENEE
Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL
(credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total

MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP000

\ -
TEFT ,

As at 1 January 2020 #20205181A 158 - 160 - 318
Impairment losses under ECL model, I &EEER T2

net of reversal REEE  MREE (29) - 4 - (29)
As at 31 December 2020 #2020512731A 129 - 164 - 293
Impairment losses under ECL model, TEEEEEREXT

net of reversal REEE  MBER (52) 124 (30) - 42
As at 31 December 2021 #2021512A31A 7 124 134 - 335

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s

operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

AREBERATER TR E 5 &
WHE : EBRERBREBAR
BREHBRBELEERRER
B WERABRBRIE AR
ERF B HEKFACE
HIEE B F (AP HEERE) -

RBE SRR

RERRBESRABRE  AEH
ERREREEERARBNAE
SELERRIBASREEDY
EMEBRARNRERESEE
IR o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

27b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

@]e)

27. €@ T B

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual

maturity for its financial liabilities which has been drawn

up

based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities

based on the earliest date on which the Group can
required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk

Weighted  Repayable
average  on demand
effective  or less than
interest rate 3 months

MEFY RERRED

BRANZ  OR=fEA 3

% MOP’000
A7

At 31 December 2021  R2021%12831H
Non-derivative financial ¥+ ¢REHE

be

3 months
to
1 year

BAZ1E
MOP'000
TR

27b. A EEBZERK
®RE)

REBESEE(E)

TRALAEESREBENHT
BHEHMEBER  EREAKHE
KA R EREENKT AR
TRABENRMRRASRERR -

TREEMNERASHREESRE

MEE L E R

Total Total
1to2 Over undiscounted carrying

years 2years  cash flows amount
AERRE

122% Bl2fF hEAE REAE

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

TR 7 TRF7 TRA7 TRx

liabilities
Trade payables BHENTUA - 2,566 1,496 - - 4,062 4,062
Lease liabilities HERE 5 279 43 490 230 1,412 1,351
2,845 1,909 490 230 5,474 5,413

Weighted Repayable
average  ondemand
effective  orless than

interest rate

3 months
to
1 year

3EAEIF

At 31 December 2020 R2020E1278 311
Non-derivative financial ~ J{T£4REE

MOP’000

% FE

Total Total
1102 Over  undiscounted carrying
years 2 years cash flows amount

*

1525 HEiB2F £ i
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

Tgpa—

] g pE—

liabilities
Trade payables ZHENTE - 19,498 - - - 19,498 19,498
Lease liabilities HERE 5 280 782 316 2 1,380 1,332
19,778 782 316 2 20,878 20,830
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. WM T H
27¢. Fair value measurements of financial 27c.ERM T EMAFEE
instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are SRHEERERHABENANTET
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing BIEENRIRBEESRESTTHA
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. REBEAET -
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities IR AV ENSREENRS
carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying BABENATEREREEMRS
amounts.
28.PERFORMANCE BONDS AND 28.BHNREBERFAARME
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Certain customers of construction contracts undertaken by the REBAEREENNE TEREXK
Group require the group entity to issue guarantees for the SEEEUBORBEARGHIED
performance of contract works in the form of performance bonds MITREEERWADERRITER(R
and secured by pledged bank deposits (see note 18). The MIEE18) 1B IR - BAORB IR EES
performance bonds are released when the construction contracts HITERR AR BUERK R RBR ©

are completed or substantially completed.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had outstanding REREER - AEEHRBITROR
performance bonds as follows: EEY NN

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
FHFIT THFIT

Issued to the Group by a bank A—RIBITAAREBEED 6,698 -

At 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained total credit 7n2021 $12ﬂ31 B REBCHEL

facilities of MOP149,568,000 (2020: MOP5,158,000) for the B &R & SEERELAR

issuance of performance bonds and these credit facilities were 149,568,000 /i 9 J£ (20204 :

secured by the promissory notes of MOP164,524,000 (2020: 5 158,000)8P17T) * ZHFEEMEHA

MOP5,673,000) provided by the Company. N &) 32 £ 47 164,524,00032 P9 7T (2020
% : 5,673,000/RFI 7T ) H) RN ZHE1TH
3 o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

29.RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 29.FBHALTHE

Compensation of key management personnel TEESIE A S H N
The remuneration of directors and other members of key NENESHNEMTEEIE A BHH
management during the year was as follows: R

2021 2020
2021 5 2020 4F

MOP’000 MOP’000
FRAT  TEFT

Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 4,641 2,380
Post-employment benefits BERR R A 18 3

4,659 2,383
The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by FEEBABZHFMNIBARRIERERE
the management of the Company having regard to the BIEFEEARBEETSEBEETE -

performance of individuals and market trends.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

30.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

SQ%E%EEEWEE%

TREMAEEREIDELNAERE
BER(BRASIIFPREEE) - BE
APELNAEREERSRERRLIR
KBRS REFRAREGERERER
TOERRERDELNRERENE

from financing activities.

& o

Accrued
share issue
costs
EstR G
BT st
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEPIT TFEFIT

Lease

liabilities Total

HESE
MOP’000
TFREFIT
(note 21)
(Ktat21)

At 1 January 2020 R 2020F1 A1H 1,302 - 1,302
Financing cash flows (note) mERSRE (KT) (1,099 (21,809) (22,904)
New leases entered FEIEE 1,048 - 1,048
Share issue cost accrued RSB I TR AN - 21,805 21,805
Interest expense FERAXZ 81 - 81
At 31 December 2020 7R 2020412 A31H 1,332 - 1,332
Financing cash flows (note) BMERETRE (M) (1,107) - (1,107)
New leases entered EIME 71 - 71
Lease modification HEERT 1,008 - 1,008
Interest expense FERZ 47 - 47
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12 A31H 1,351 - 1,351

Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of repayment of lease liabilities,
interest paid, or share issue costs paid in the consolidated statement of

cash flows.

e RenBHeseRiengRPEER
EaE  BENFSRE RN BEITHA
R)FEE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

@]e)

31.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31.7< T BS54RS0 &
OF THE COMPANY

2021 0720]
2021 % 2020 4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FBFT 5T FEFIT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RBRRIMIRE 35,569 35,569
Amount due from a subsidiary FEULH B A B IE 50,388 32,688
85,957 68,257

Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and deferred share issue costs T8/ 3018 & R IE AR 9 841 TR AR 105 230
Bank balances IRITHEBRIRS 2,922 18,104
3,027 18,334
Current liabilities RBEE

Accruals &R 1,677 2,150
Tax liabilities AR 32 -
1,709 2,150
Net current assets RBEEFRE 1,318 16,184
Net assets BEEFE 87,275 84,441

Capital and reserves BERRHE
Share capital A& 7R 5,150 5,150
Reserves EE 82,125 79,291
Total equity EEAE 87,275 84,441
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR M

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE

31.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31.7&Q TR E =)

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement on the Company’s reserves RPN A#AEE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
15 E Rt EE #st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEFTT FHEFIT FEFIT
At 1 January 2020 7202041 A1 8 35,569 (361) 35,208
Loss and total comprehensive FREE LR EH A58
expense for the year - (31,835) (31,835)
Issue of shares pursuant to B E AL BT ITAY D
capitalisation issue (note 22) (H1at22) (4,088) - (4,088)
Issue of shares pursuant to BIEAREEEITRG
public offering (note 22) (Krit22) 105,131 - 105,131
Share issue costs % {7 81T RCA (25,125) - (25,125)
At 31 December 2020 F 2020412 5318 111,487 (32,196) 79,291
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNEEEKEBEE
income for the year - 2,834 2,834
At 31 December 2021 2021412 5318 111,487 (29,362) 82,125

BIHEIERERAG 2021 FEHRS
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERBE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the AEERAIAETBFE 2 E2ENEENE
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated EfIE @ WiFEKSEX G M B RE LA
financial statements and the Prospectus is set out below. PR ERREHINT o

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HLEEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

2021 2020 20194 20184 2017 %
MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000
TRFIT THRFIT  THEFIT  THRFIT  THRFIT

RESULTS E

Revenue L 184,496 276,790 237,680 218,254 160,752
Profit before tax eyl 29,104 29,764 45,994 32,395 34,478
Income tax expense FTiS iR (2,866) (3,091) (5,456) (4,965) (4,628)

Profit and total comprehensive £ H M R 2 H

income for the year Wzs1azE 26,238 26,673 40,538 27,430 29,850
Basic and diluted earnings BRAR KRS
per share (MOP cents) 27 CRFIW) 5.25 6.23 10.21 6.91 7.52

At 31 December

MW12H31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20214 2020 ¢ 20194 20184 2017 F
MOP’000  MOP'000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000
FRFIx THRFIT THEFIT THRFIT TR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XERA®E

Total assets BERRE 274,942 260,845 166,473 113,936 80,463
Total liabilities BEBE (38,532) (50,673) (64,042) (52,043) (36,000)
Net assets BEFE 236,410 210,172 102,431 61,893 44,463
Total equity M ABRE 236,410 210,172 102,431 61,893 44,463
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